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The Board of Water Supply, City and County of Honolulu, Regular Meeting will be held on Monday, 
February 24, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. in the Boardroom, Public Service Building, 630 South Beretania Street, 
Honolulu, HI 96843. 

Limited seating will be available for in-person testifiers in the Boardroom. The public may also view the 
livestream of the meeting from the lobby of the Board of Water Supply, Public Service Building, 630 South 
Beretania Street, Honolulu, HI 96843. 

Public parking for this meeting is available in the Public Service Building customer parking lot. 

TESTIMONY 

Testimony may be submitted as follows: 

• Written testimony should include the submitter's address, email address, and phone number.
Testimony should be received by Monday, February 24, 2025, at noon. Submit written testimony 
by:

o Email to board@hbws.org
o Online at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony
o Mail to Board of Water Supply, 630 South Beretania Street, Honolulu, HI

96843
o Fax to (808) 748-5079

• Oral testimony will be accepted remotely and in person during the meeting. Pre­
registration is encouraged to facilitate as much remote and in-person testimony as
reasonably possible during the time allotted. Testifiers should also consider submitting a
written version of their oral testimony.

o To testify remotely by phone or video using the Zoom videoconferencing
platform, please submit your request by:

• Email to board@hbws.org
• Online at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony

Zoom registration instructions, as well as participant guidelines, will be sent to 
the contact information provided. Once confirmed as registered, testifiers will 
receive an email containing the links and instructions to join the Zoom session. 
Submit your request to testify remotely by Friday, February 21, 2025, at noon. 

o To testify in person at the Board of Water Supply, Public Service Building, 630 South
Beretania Street, Honolulu, HI 96843, please pre-register by submitting your request by
Monday, February 24, 2025:

• Email to board@hbws.org
■ Online at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony



In-person testifiers should check in with building security and then with testimony staff 
located in the lobby. Testifiers will be escorted to and from the Board Room. On-site 
registration will be available for walk-in requests. 

Testimony is limited to two (2) minutes and shall be presented by the registered speaker 
only. Testimony submitted in writing or orally, electronically or in person, for use in the 
meeting process is public information. All testimony will be included as part of the 
approved meeting minutes at boardofwatersupply.com/boardmeetings. 

MATERIALS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 

Meeting materials ("board packet" under HRS §92-7.5) are accessible at 
www.boardofwatersupply.com/boardmeetings. 

VIEWING THE MEETING 

The meeting will be viewable via live streaming on the BWS website: 
www.boardofwatersupply.com/live. Video will appear on screen. You may have to click the 
arrow on video to start it. You may have to unmute audio, as muted audio tends to be the 
default setting. 

SPECIAL REQUESTS AND ACCOMMODATIONS 

If you require special assistance, an auxiliary aid or service, and/or an accommodation due to a 
disability to participate in this meeting (i.e., sign language interpreter, interpreter for language other 
than English, or wheelchair accessibility), please call Joy at (808) 7 48-5172 or email your request to 
board@hbws.org at least three business days prior to the meeting date. If a response is 
received after the requested three business days before the meeting date deadline, we will try to 
obtain the auxiliary aid/service or accommodation, but we cannot guarantee that the request will be 
filled. 

Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats such as large print, Braille, or electronic 
copy. 



The agenda for February 24, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Board of Water Supply is as 
follows: 

ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held on January 27, 2025

2. Adoption of Resolution No. 995, 2025, Acceptance of Gifts to the Board of Water
Supply from Various Donors in Support of the 2025 Water Conservation Week
Program

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

1. Update on the Board of Water Supply's Response to the Potential Impacts of the
Red Hill Fuel Contamination

2. Capital Improvements Program Semi-Annual Update

3. Financial Update for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2024

4. Financial Statements and Supplementary Information with Independent Auditors'
Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

5. Petition for the Designation of the Wai'anae Sector as a Ground Water
Management Area

6. Status Update of Groundwater Levels at All Index Stations

7. Water Main Repair Report for January 2025

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Executive Session Meeting Held on January 27,
2025

2. To Consult with the Board's Attorney on Questions and Issues pertaining to the
Board's Powers, Duties, Privileges, Immunities, and Liabilities Pertaining to
Matters Concerning the Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility [HRS §92-5(a)(4))



M!N Uif§. 

To watch the recording of this meeting, please click on the following link: 
https://vimeo.com/bwshonolulu/feb-24-2025. Closed captioning is available. 

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 

February 24, 2025 

At 2:00 PM on February 24, 2025, in the Public Service Building Board Room at 630 South 
Beretania Street, Honolulu, Hawai'i, Board Chair Na'alehu Anthony called to order the Regular 
Meeting. 

February 24, 2025 

Present: 

Also Present: 

Na'alehu Anthony, Chair 
Jonathan Kaneshiro, Vice Chair 
Lance Wilhelm, Board Member 
Kehaulani Pu'u, Board Member via Zoom 
Gene Albano, Ex-Officio via Zoom 

Ernest Lau, Manager and Chief Engineer 
Erwin Kawata, Deputy Manager 
Patrick Chun, Acting Program Administrator, 

Capital Projects Division 
Jewel Pharms, Assistant Program Administrator, 

Customer Care Division 
Kathleen Elliott-Pahinui, Information Officer, 

Communications Office 
Raelynn Nakabayashi, Executive Assistant I, 

Executive Support Office 
Wayne Tello, Acting Program Administrator, 

Field Operations Division 
Leanne Matsumoto, Waterworks Controller, 

Finance Division 
Michele Thomas, Executive Assistant I, 

Human Resources Office via Vimeo 
Henderson Nuuhiwa, Program Administrator, 

Information Technology Division 
Michael Matsuo, Land Administrator, Land Division 
Barry Usagawa, Program Administrator, 

Water Resources Division 
Pekelo Martin, Acting Program Administrator, 

Water System Operations Division 
Joyce Lin, Civil Engineer IV, Office of the Manager 

and Chief Engineer 
Kimberly Kuwaye, Manager Secretary 
Joy Cruz-Achiu, Board Secretary 
Kathy Mitchell, Administrative Services Officer 

via Vimeo 
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February 24, 2025 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

Stella Bernardo, Information Specialist II, 
Communications Office via Zoom 

Michele Harman, Community Relations Specialist I, 
Communications Office via Zoom 

Wayne Maria, Information Specialist 11, 
Communications Office 

Jonathan Scheuer, Kahalawai Consulting, LLC 
Donn Nakamura, Accuity, LLP 
Joshua Yee, Accuity, LLP 

Jeff Lau, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
via Zoom 

Jessica Wong, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
via Zoom 

Bryan P. Andaya, Board Member 
Edwin H. Sniffen, Ex-Officio 
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Chair Na'alehu Anthony opened the Board meeting with an 'olelo no'eau: 

Aloha mai kakou e na hoa makamaka mai ka la hiki a ka la kau. Welina nui me ke aloha! 

Mahalo nui no keia 'akoakoa 'ana o kakou no ka pono o ka lahui, no ka pono o ka 'aina, a 

no ka pono o ka wai no ho'i. Eia he 'olelo no'eau e kalele ana i ke ko'iko'i o ka wai. 

Chair Anthony translated the 'olelo no'eau: Aloha from the rising to the setting sun 
Thank you all for coming together today for the people, the land, and the water. Here is a short 
Hawaiian Proverb that helps us remember the importance of fresh water and land. 

'Olelo 2482: Ola i ka wai aka 'opua. 

Chair Anthony translated 'olelo 2482: There is life in the water from the clouds. Rain gives us life. 

Chair Anthony welcomed everyone to the February 24, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Water Supply (BWS). He stated that the Board of Water Supply is dedicated to providing safe, 
dependable, and affordable supply of water now and into the future. 

Before continuing the meeting, Chair Anthony stated that a recording would play to share 
reminders for public participation and virtual meeting regulations required by law. 

The recording played: Goals for this meeting under Hawai'i Revised Statutes, Section 92-7.5 
are accessible at www.boardofwatersupply.com/boardmeeting. The public may attend this 
meeting in person at the Public Service building located at 630 South Beretania Street. The 
public may also view a live stream of today's meeting on our website at 
www.boardofwatersupply.com/live. We have been accepting written or oral testimony for 
today's meeting. Instructions and an online submittal form are available at 
boardofwatersupply.com/testimony. The deadline to submit advance written testimony has 
passed. Testimony received by noon today has been distributed to the board members. We 
will continue to accept written testimony today through our online form. Oral testimony in 
person or remotely will be accepted during today's meeting. To facilitate as much in-person and 
remote testimony as reasonably possible during the time allotted, preregistration and submittal 
of a written version of testimony at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony is strongly encouraged. 
To testify in person, please register using our online form or come to the public service building 
at 630 South Beretania Street. We have a representative in the lobby to provide intake and 
further instructions. To request to testify remotely, please complete the online form at 
boardofwatersupply.com/testimony. Requesters will receive an email containing links and 
instructions on how to join the Zoom session. Testifiers will have two minutes to state their 
position. A timekeeper will alert testifiers when there is one minute remaining. Once the two 
minutes are up, please summarize to allow time for questions from the Board. Then, make 
room for the next testifier. Board members attending any board meeting remotely must be 
visible to the public to be considered, present, and meet quorum guidelines. Board members 
participating remotely must also disclose their location and anyone present at their location 
during roll call. Meeting participants who are calling or video conferencing in, please mute your 
microphone when you're not speaking. If you have a question, comment, or wish to enter or 
second a motion on an action item, please unmute your microphone and identify yourself before 
continuing to speak. If you encounter technical issues during today's meeting, please use the 
Zoom chat to send a direct message to our support team. Their names are listed in the 
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message to all participants. To open the chat window, please click the text Bubble icon on the 
Zoom T oolbar. 

Chair Anthony requested a roll call for the Regular Meeting. He asked those participating 
remotely to give the appropriate disclosures up responding. 

Board Member Gene Albano joined via Zoom, responded aye, and disclosed that he was alone 
at his location; Vice Chair Jonathan Kaneshiro responded here and was present in the Board 
room; Board Member Lance Wilhelm responded e'o and was present in the Board room; and 
Chair Anthony was in the Boardroom. Board Members Bryan Andaya, Kehaulani Pu'u, and 
Edwin Sniffen were absent. 

Chair Anthony introduced those in the Boardroom: Manager Ernest Lau, Deputy Manager Erwin 
Kawata, Board Secretary Joy L. Cruz-Achiu, Manager Secretary Kimberly Kuwaye, and 
Information Specialist II Wayne Maria. Deputy Jeff Lau and Deputy Jessica Wong joined via 
Zoom from the City and County Corporation Counsel. 
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REGULAR MEETING 

APPROVAL OF 
MINUTES 

MOTION 
TO APPROVE 

Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held on January 27, 
2025. 

Jonathan Kaneshiro and Lance Wilhelm motioned and seconded, 
respectively, to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held on 
January 27, 2025. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu conducted a roll call vote: Vice Chair Jonathan 
Kaneshiro, aye; Board Member Lance Wilhelm, aye; Board Member 
Gene Albano, aye; and Chair Na'alehu Anthony, aye. Ms. Cruz-Achiu 
announced that the motion passed with four ayes. Board Members Bryan 
Andaya, Kehaulani Pu'u, and Edwin Sniffen were absent. 

THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD ON 
JANUARY 27, 2025, WERE APPROVED AT THE 
FEBRUARY 24, 2025, BOARD MEETING 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA ABSENT 

LANCE WILHELM X 

KtHAULANI PU'U ABSENT 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO X 
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ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION 
NO. 995, 2025, 
ACCEPTANCE 
OF GIFTS TO 
THE BOARD OF 
WATER SUPPLY 

FROM VARIOUS 

DONORS IN 
SUPPORT OF 
THE 2025 
WATER 
CONSER­
VATION WEEK 
PROGRAM 

February 24, 2025 

Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

"February 24, 2025 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 995, 2025, Acceptance of Gifts 

to the Board of Water Supply from Various Donors in 
Support of the 2025 Water Conservation Week 
Program 

We recommend the adoption of the attached Resolution No. 995, 
2025, that accepts proposed gifts to the Board of Water Supply 
(BWS), City and County of Honolulu, in support of the 2025 Water 
Conservation Week (WCW) Program. Monetary and in-kind gifts 
from the donors total $14,100.00. 

Donor Name 
Friends of Halawa Xeriscape Garden 
Sodexo (Refreshments for awards ceremony) 
Hawaiian Financial Federal Credit Union 
Aloha Pacific Federal Credit Union 
Alexander and Baldwin, Incorporated 
Hawai'i Energy 
Pasha Hawai'i 

TOTAL 

Amount 
$ 2,000.00 
$ 4,600.00 
$ 2,000.00 
$ 2,000.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$ 1,500.00 

$14,100.00 

This well-established education outreach program is in its 4 7th year of 
existence. It uses a poster and poetry contest to engage Oahu's students 
in grades Kindergarten through 12 and teach them the value of water. 
Our goal is to instill in them the need to be water-efficient as, together, 
everyone contributes to a larger, island-wide commitment to a sustainable 
water future. Through this program, the BWS hopes to inspire more 
island residents to adopt water-conserving behaviors. 

Sponsor gifts will help the BWS offset program costs that include the 
printing of 20,000 copies of the 2026 Water Conservation Calendars that 
will feature the winning entries from the 2025 WCW Poster and Poetry 
contests, as well as an awards ceremony for place winners and 
honorable mentions of the 2025 contests. The calendars are distributed 
to all Oahu schools, elected officials, and the public. 

We deeply appreciate the continued support of this Board for this very 
valuable and worthwhile public education program. All participants in our 
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Attachment" 

DISCUSSION: 

MOTION 
TO APPROVE 

February 24, 2025 

WCW program are encouraged to always embrace their roles as 
responsible stewards of our precious water resources. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

Kathleen Elliott-Pahinui, Information Officer, Communications Office, 
gave the report. 

Chair Anthony stated that various donors have continued supporting the 
BWS Water Conservation Week Program over the years. He asked what 
kind of positivity comes from the BWS Water Conservation Program. 

Ms. Kathleen Elliott-Pahinui shared that over 50 schools participated in 
the poster contest, and 11 schools participated in the poem contest last 
year. In 2024, 847 posters and 312 poems were submitted. The BWS 
Water Conservation Program contest allows students and teachers to 
become involved and share their experiences and what was learned 
through the BWS Water Conservation Program. The winning posters and 
poems are featured in the BWS calendar, which the community enjoys. 

At 2:08 PM, Chair Anthony recognized Board Member Kehaulani Pu'u 
joined the meeting via Zoom. 

Board Member Kehaulani Pu'u disclosed that she was alone in her office. 

Lance Wilhem and Jonathan Kaneshiro motioned and seconded, 
respectively, to approve the Adoption of Resolution No. 995, 2025, 
Acceptance of Gifts to the Board of Water Supply from Various Donors in 

Support of the 2025 Water Conservation Week Program. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu conducted a roll call: Vice Chair Jonathan Kaneshiro, 
aye; Board Member Lance Wilhelm, aye; Board Member Kehaulani Pu'u, 
aye; Board Member Gene Albano, aye; and Chair Na'alehu Anthony, aye. 
Board Member Bryan Andaya and Board Member Edwin Sniffen were 
absent. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu announced that the motion passed with five ayes. 
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BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU 

RESOLUTION NO. 995, 2025 

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS TO THE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 
FROM VARIOUS DONORS IN SUPPORT OF THE 
2025 WATER CONSERVATION WEEK PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Board of Water Supply's (BWS) annual Water Conservation Week 
program uses a poster and poetry contest to inspire Oahu students to reflect on the importance 
of efficient water use in their lives and features the winning and honorable mention entries in a 
yearly Water Conservation Calendar that is distributed to the public; and 

WHEREAS, the BWS may solicit gifts to the Department, as long as it does not provide 
special consideration, treatment, advantage, privilege, or exemption for or coerce a potential 
donor; and 

WHEREAS, the BWS will solicit for gifts on its agency website, which is available for 
access by any interested person or business; and 

WHEREAS, the Friends of Halawa Xeriscape Garden; Sodexo; Hawaiian Financial 
Federal Credit Union, Board of Water Supply Branch; Aloha Pacific Federal Credit Union; 
Alexander and Baldwin, Incorporated; Hawai'i Energy; and Pasha Hawai'i; are offering monetary 
and in-kind gifts totaling $14,100.00 in support of the 2025 Water Conservation Week program; 
and 

WHEREAS, a gift to the BWS benefits the Department because it assists ongoing 
efforts, such as this well-established public education program, and reduces the need for 
ratepayer funds to support the program's key components; and 

WHEREAS, the gifts will be used to offset reasonable and necessary costs of the 
printing and delivery of about 20,000 Water Conservation Calendars featuring the contests' 
winning entries and efforts to recognize the student winners and honorable mentions; now, 
therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Water Supply hereby accepts the various gifts 
valued at $14,100.00 and directs the Manager and Chief Engineer, or his delegate, to accept 
and thank the various donors for these gifts. 

ADOPTED: 

�/4-:� 
NA'ALEHU ANTHONY 
Chair 

Honolulu, Hawai'i 
February 24, 2025 

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 995, 2025, 
ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS TO THE BOARD OF WATER 
SUPPLY FROM VARIOUS DONORS IN SUPPORT OF 2025 
WATER CONSERVATION WEEK PROGRAM WAS 
ADOPTED ON FEBRUARY 24, 2025 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA ABSENT 

LANCE WILHELM X 

KEHAULANI PU'U X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO X 



ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 1 

UPDATE ON 
THE BOARD OF 
WATER SUPPL Y'S 
RESPONSE TO 
THE POTENTIAL 
IMPACTS OF 
RED HILL FUEL 
CONTAMINATION 

DISCUSSION: 

February 24, 2025 

"February 24, 2025 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Update on the Board of Water Supply's Response to the 

Potential Impacts of the Red Hill Fuel Contamination 

Joyce Lin, Civil Engineer IV, Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer, 
will give an Update on the Board of Water Supply's Response to the 
Potential Impacts of the Red Hill Fuel Contamination. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Joyce Lin, Civil Engineer IV, Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer, 
gave the report. 

Board Member Lance Wilhelm inquired if the BWS has anything to do 
with the University of Hawaii (UH) study. 

Ms. Joyce Lin replied that the study being done by UH is an independent 
study tasked by the Navy to better understand the underground 
movements in the aquifer. 

Manager Ernest Lau shared that the UH received a $20 million (M) grant 
to fund the development of an independent groundwater flow model and 
is working closely with the Department of Health (DOH). The Navy is also 
conducting its own study on the groundwater flow model. The BWS does 
not have access to the tracer study until it becomes public and has not 
been consulted. 

Board Member Wilhelm asked if the BWS should be consulted on the 
tracer study. 

Manager Lau replied that it would have been nice to be notified that red 
dye was being used in the tracer study so it could be identified if it should 
show up during any BWS testing. If there are any questions regarding 
the tracer study, the BWS will refer them to the UH. He commented that 
the underground geology is complicated and diverse; therefore, the tracer 
study is good. 
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February 24, 2025 

Board Member Wilhelm commented that everyone involved should find a 
way to work together. 

Manager Lau agreed with Board Member Wilhelm and stated that 
communicating would be an easy first step. The BWS can help with 
getting information out to the community. He mentioned that the 
Community Representation Initiative (CRI) group continues to hold 
meetings to share information and discuss Red Hill. The CRl's next 
meeting is on Thursday, February 27,. 2025. 

Board Member Wilhelm commented that the independence of the study 
seems important. 

Manager Lau pointed out that the funding for the study comes from the 
Navy but is not involved in how the study is conducted. 

Chair Anthony inquired if the red dye used in the study had any negative 
effects on drinking water. 

Manager Lau responded that his only information would come from their 
press release. He commented that a frequently asked question (FAQ) list 
should include whether the red dye is being pumped into the drinking 
water aquifer. 

Ms. Lin stated that the tracer used is Rhodamine WT, which is considered 
non-toxic and approved by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
and the Department of Health (DOH). 

Chair Anthony asked if any other tracer studies have been done across 
the valley or outside the Navy property. 

Manager Lau replied that other tracer studies had been used but were 
unfamiliar with other efforts. 

Ms. Lin mentioned an 11-minute YouTube webinar discussing past tracer 
studies in Lahaina and Oahu, surrounding other fuel tank facilities. 

Chair Anthony inquired if the tracer is visible if pumped or can be tested. 

Ms. Lin responded that the tracer can be identified by applying light to the 
water sample to turn the tracer's fluorescent. 

Chair Anthony commented if measuring the tracer within the BWS wells is 
such a bad idea. 

Manager Lau replied that the BWS would reach out to the UH to ask for 
more information. 

Chair Anthony commented that the question about the relationship 
between the wells, the aquifer, and the valleys has remained constant 
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February 24, 2025 

even before the spill. Therefore, determining where the tracer is moving 
within the area or between the valleys is data. 

Manager Lau mentioned that the BWS also participates in the 
Remediation Roundtable, which the EPA and the DOH created to allow 
various stakeholders to get involved in the groundwater flow studies and 
remediation. 

Chair Anthony asked who is taking the lead in the UH tracer study. 

Ms. Lin stated that Mr. Toomas Parratt is the lead of the UH tracer study. 

Manager Lau added that Dr. Don Thomas is Mr. Parratt's advisor. He 
said he would send Dr. Thomas an email requesting more information. 

There was written testimony: 

Meredith Wilson She expressed her 

appreciation to Manager Lau 

for highlighting the updated 

Groundwater Flow Model 

Report and submitted 

questions. 

Q: Does the BWS intend to provide comment on these new models? 
A: Manager Lau responded that the BWS is currently still 

reviewing the 12,000 page groundwater flow model report that 
was released in September 2024. 

Q: I know I've heard from Navy and BWS that acquiring sites for new 
monitoring wells can be challenging, some are located on private 
property and need to go through lengthy process. Is there any 
incentives or way the community can encourage homeowners to 
agree to these projects. 

A: Manager Lau agreed that it has been challenging and replied 
that he is unaware of any incentives. 

There was in-person testimony: 

Susan Pcola-Davis Shared 31-pages to support 

her opinion and summary of 

the December 2024 SWARM 

and BWS meeting. 

Chair Anthony agreed with Ms. Susan Pcola-Davis's comments regarding 
the Navy's use of why a granulated activated carbon (GAC). 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 2 

CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM 
SEMI-ANNUAL 
UPDATE 

DISCUSSION: 

February 24, 2025 

"February 24, 2025 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Capital Improvement Program Semi-Annual Update 

Patrick Chun, Acting Program Administrator, Capital Projects Division, will 
provide an update on the execution of the first and second quarters of FY 
2025 Capital Improvement Program Budget. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Patrick Chun, Acting Program Administrator, Capital Projects Division, 
gave the report. 

Board Member Wilhelm asked to go back to slide 2. He commented that 
the $11 M spent during the first two quarters compared to the budgeted 
$279M for the fiscal year is minimal, meaning that the BWS would be very 
busy in the last two quarters. Board Member Wilhelm asked if there was 
a reason why. 

Quartarly capllal lmprowment Program status Raport 
All Divisions 

as of December 31, 2024 

Jlfl•MM 
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February 24, 2025 

Mr. Patrick Chun stated that the BWS tries to encumber earlier in the 
fiscal year; however, the BWS typically awards the majority of its projects 
during the second half of the fiscal year. 

Board Member Wilhelm commented that the result of awarding later in the 
fiscal year only allows the work to be done in a shorter period, creating 
the hockey-looking figure when graphed. 
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Manager Lau shared that the BWS is working on a Capital Improvement 
Program (GIP) proposal to the Board for Fiscal Year 2025. The BWS will 
propose extending GIP appropriations an additional 12 months, allowing 
24 months to get the job out. He explained that it requires a lot of effort to 
assemble a design package and prepare all the contract documents 
before the job is put out to bid for 30 days. Manager Lau mentioned that 
in 2024, the BWS had to delay or cancel a few projects for good reason. 
He recommends that the BWS work to get projects out in the first or 
second quarter with hopes of better pricing. 

Mr. Chun stated that the reason for the more flattened budget execution 
bar is due to the $60M encumbrance for the Kalealoa Desalination project 
in the second quarter of Fiscal Year 2024. 

Chair Anthony asked how much of the BWS vacancies affect the 
execution of projects. 

Mr. Chun replied that if there were fewer vacancies, it would help with the 
execution process. 

Manager Lau inquired how many engineer positions are vacant in the 
Capital Projects Division. 

Mr. Chun responded approximately 1 0 engineering positions are vacant. 

Board Member Wilhelm commented that the amount of work necessary to 
complete the job is also reflected in the project cost. 
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Manager Lau agreed with Board Member Wilhelm and said it is generally 
true. He mentioned that a project that was put out for bid required 
rebidding, which was not much less than the original bid; however, he 
pointed out that some projects require a relationship or qualified 
contractors for specific jobs. 

Chair Anthony asked if there would be delays in receiving federal loans or 
grant funding for projects set for the later Fiscal Year 2025. 

Manager Lau stated he does not know what the future holds due to 
uncertain times. The BWS is currently operating as if federal funds are 
available. However, if federal funding isn't available for a specific project 
that the BWS wants to start or continue with, the BWS will come before 
the Board to amend the CIP. He mentioned concerns about the EPA's 
Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) loan, which is a 
minimum of $20M or higher; however, he remains hopeful after being 
notified that two states were awarded the WIFIA loan. 

Board Member Wilhem inquired how much the BWS could execute its 
CIP projects if federal or state funding were unavailable. 

Manager Lau replied that the BWS had approximately $1 00M in its 
budget, with federal funds and low-interest loans being the majority. 

Chair Anthony asked if federal grants and low-interest loans must be paid 
back. 

Manager Lau responded that the loans must be paid back. However, he 
hopes that the state revolving fund (SRF) continues since it is a low­
interest loan. The SRF is meant to assist all utilities throughout the 
country with its infrastructure issues. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 3 

FINANCIAL 
UPDATE FOR 
QUARTER ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 
2024 

DISCUSSION: 

February 24, 2025 

"February 24, 2025 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Financial Update for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2024 

The following Board of Water Supply's financial reports and graphs are 

attached: 

• Budget vs Actual Revenue and Expense Totals
• Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets
• Balance Sheet
• Budget vs Actual Appropriation Budget- Total BWS Summary
• Graph Representing Operating Expenditures by Category
• Graphs of Total Budgeted Operating Expenditures and Total Budgeted

Operating Revenues

Attachment" 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Leanne Matsumoto, Waterworks Controller, Finance Division, gave the 
report. 

Vice Chair Jonathan Kaneshiro asked about the reduced expenditures in 
the first half of the fiscal year and if they caused by the implementation of 
strict operating cost controls. 

Ms. Raelynn Nakabayashi replied that the variances in the first and 
second quarters are due to timing and encumbrance differences. She 
stated that although the money was not spent early in the fiscal year, 
there are plans to utilize the budgeted funds; therefore, the BWS would 
make use of each dollar appropriated. Ms. Nakabayashi explained that 
the varaiances in personnel costs are due to the BWS vacancies. In May, 
the BWS proposed a budget to fund and fill vacant positions in hopes that 
positions would be filled. However, the BWS has steadily faced 
challenges in doing so. Therefore, the Personnel Service category is due 
to inability to fill vacant positions, whereas, categories such as 
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February 24, 2025 

Equipment, and Material, Supplies & Services are due to timing, and will 
eventually be used as intended. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 4 

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION 
WITH 
INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS' 
REPORT, 
FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2024 

DISCUSSION: 

February 24, 2025 

"February 24, 2025 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Financial Statements and Supplementary Information 
with Independent Auditors' Report, Fiscal Year Ended 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Our auditors, Accuity LLP, have completed the audit of the financial 
statements and federal awards of the Board of Water Supply and issued 
an unmodified opinion. They have indicated that there were no material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies on internal control over the 
financial statements. 

Attached are copies of the financial statements of the Board of Water 

Supply and the reports thereon by Accuity LLP, covering the results of 
their examination of the accounts and financial status of the Board of 

Water Supply for the year ended June 30, 2024 as required under Article 
VII, Section 7-108 of the Revised Charter. 

Donn Nakamura and Joshua Yee from Accuity LLP will present the 
required communications and highlights from the auditors' report. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Donn Nakamura and Joshua Yee, Accuity LLP, gave the report. There 
were no comments or discussion. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Introduction (Unaudited) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

The Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu (the "BWS") is pleased to present its Annual Financial 
Report for fiscal year 2024. This introduction provides a brief overview of the mission, organization, and operations of 
the BWS. The following management's discussion and analysis is intended to provide the reader with an easily 

understandable analysis of the BWS's financial performance and all aspects of its financial position. Financial statements 

presenting the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the BWS in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, accompanied by the independent auditors' report, follows 

the management's discussion and analysis. 

History of the Board of Water Supply 

The BWS was created in 1929 by the Territorial Legislature in response to public outcry for a truly effective water 
management system that was not influenced by politics. The 1929 Legislature passed Act 96 to create and define the 
powers and duties of the Honolulu Board of Water Supply. Although it remained as a department of the City and County 

of Honolulu (the "City"), the BWS was designed to be a semi-autonomous and self-supporting agency with the authority 
to charge for water usage to support its capital improvement and operating expenses and set long-term plans for O'ahu's 

water future. 

Powers, Duties and Functions 

The BWS manages O'ahu's municipal water resources and distribution system, providing residents with a safe, 
dependable and affordable drinking water supply. The BWS is the largest municipal water utility in the state of Hawaii. 

In fiscal year 2024, the BWS delivered potable and non-potable water to approximately one million customers on O'ahu. 
The BWS carefully and proactively manages and invests in its intricate system, consisting of 94 active potable water 
sources, 172 reservoirs, and over 2,100 miles of pipeline. 

The BWS is a financially self-sufficient, semi-autonomous agency of the City. Its operations and projects are financed 
with revenues generated by water transmission and distribution fees. It receives no tax money from the City. The BWS 
also pursues federal and state grants to help subsidize BWS projects. 

The BWS is governed by a Board of Directors ("Board"), consisting of seven members. Five members are appointed by 
the Mayor and are confirmed by the Honolulu City Council. The remaining two serve in their capacities as the Director 
of the State Department of Transportation, and the Director and Chief Engineer of the City's Department of Facility 
Maintenance. The Board appoints the BWS Manager and Chief Engineer to administer the BWS. 

The BWS consists of the following ten divisions: Capital Projects Division, Customer Care Division, Field Operations 
Division, Finance Division, Information Technology Division, Land Division, Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer, 
Water Quality Division, Water Resources Division, and Water System Operations Division. There are also three staff 
offices in the Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer: Executive Support Office, Human Resources Office, and the 

Communications Office. 

Vision 

'Ka Wai Ola - Water for Life' -The vision of the BWS captures the critical need for water, which is the basis for life. With 
this vision comes the responsibility of the BWS's stewardship of, and duty to manage, our natural water resources and 
watersheds for present and future generations. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Introduction (Unaudited) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Mission 

The BWS's mission is to provide a safe, dependable and affordable water supply now and into the future, focusing in 

three strategic areas: resource, operational and financial sustainability. 

• Resource Sustainability (Safe) - Protect and manage O'ahu's water resources and watersheds now and into the

future through adaptive and integrated strategies.

• Operational Sustainability (Dependable)- Manage and continuously refine an effective organization that can

evolve and adapt its human and physical resources to provide dependable service.

• Financial Sustainability (Affordable) - Implement sound fiscal strategies to support our mission.

Accomplishments 

BWS employees work diligently to provide safe, dependable and affordable water service to customers by concentrating 

their efforts to achieve the BWS's strategic goals: 

• Resource Sustainability (Safe)

► Conducted 23,097 chemical tests, 23,771 microbiological tests, and collected 27,334 samples from BWS

sources, distribution systems, and treatment facilities to ensure all water served is safe to drink; tests

performed during fiscal year 2024 include regulatory compliance testing, groundwater quality testing, and

response to customer inquiries about water quality.

► Safeguarded the drinking water system from any reverse flow of water back into the distribution system by
ensuring more than 9,400 backflow prevention assemblies island-wide were tested and functioning properly,

conducted more than 1,850 cross-connection control field inspections, and 27 R-1 water cross-connection

control surveys.

► Responded, and continue to respond, to the Navy's Red Hill Underground Bulk Fuel Storage Facility crisis

that resulted in the closure of Halawa Shaft, one of O'ahu's largest pumping stations, and two additional wells

in the 'Aiea/Halawa area; awarded a construction contract for exploratory well at the Newtown 550' Reservoir, 

as possible replacement sources for the Halawa Shaft due to the Red Hill fuel contamination; and awarded

construction contracts for monitoring wells at Halawa District Park and Animal Quarantine Station to monitor

the potential migration of a fuel plume across Halawa Valley.

► In June 2023, BWS completed its annual production and delivery of the Consumer Confidence Report ("CCR"),

also known as the Water Quality Report, to all BWS customers. The report provides information on the quality

of the water delivered from the BWS system and was mailed to all customers on record and is also available

at www.boardofwatersupply.com. The BWS also placed ads in Honolulu newspapers, including various ethnic

language publications, to inform community members of the distribution.

► The BWS and Kalaeloa Desalco, LLC are working on the planning, permitting and design of the Kalaeloa

Seawater Desalination Facility, which will be the first municipal desalination facility in the State of Hawai'i,
to be located at Campbell Industrial Park, and will have a capacity of 1.7 million gallons per day (mgd),

expandable to 5 mgd capacity and is expected to be operational by 2029.
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Introduction (Unaudited) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

► The BWS sponsored its 46th annual Water Conservation Week Poster Contest and the 16th annual Water

Conservation Week Poetry Contest with 841 posters and 312 poems from 27 O'ahu schools, focused on the

theme, "Our Water, Our Home:' All winning entries will be featured in the 2025 Water Conservation Calendar

scheduled for distribution in December 2024.

• Operational Sustainability (Dependable)

► Responded to 409 main breaks, or about 24 breaks per 100 miles of pipeline, and conducted leak detection
surveys for 720 points of interest, which resulted in the Leak Detection Team finding and repairing 792 leaks
(including 77 leaks to main lines) before major property damages or system interruptions occurred.

► BWS staff helped protect O'ahu's water resources and prevent damage to BWS infrastructure by handling 8,028

One Call underground pipeline location requests and providing in-field support for 479 water line leaks and
breaks. In fiscal year 2024, 14,139 meter investigations were conducted to ensure accurate and timely billing

and assisted 3,534 customers with concerns about bills reflecting high water consumption. BWS staff assisted

97,985 customers: 69,939 (71.4%) by phone; 15,462 (15.8%) via web requests; 11,194 (11.4%) via ePortal

service orders; and 1,390 (1.4%) in-person.

• Financial Sustainability (Affordable)

► Issuance of $72.8 million of water system revenue bonds in April 2024 to finance capital improvement projects

and $26.1 million to refinance older bonds at a lower interest rate, resulting in present value savings of
$503,600; and was awarded $7.8 million in State Revolving Fund loans with a principal forgiveness of

$4.9 million; the 2024 water system revenue bonds were rated AAA by S&P Global and Fitch Ratings.

► Awarded and issued $64.7 million in construction work and $9.4 million in professional services design work

for projects to maintain and improve water system facilities, including well and booster stations, reservoirs,
corporation yards, and for the systematic replacement of aging and deteriorated water mains and

improvements for fire protection.

► Initiated design work for more than 1.8 miles of water main replacements in the Pearlridge/'Aiea area.

Awarded contracts for the construction of over 1.8 miles of water main in 'Aiea, Manoa, and Foster Village

areas.

► Awarded design and construction contracts for renovations and improvements at the following BWS facilities:

'Aina Koa Well, Barbers Point Non-Potable Well, Beretania Engineering Building Courtyard, Beretania

Microbiology Lab, Hawai'i Loa Booster No. 1, Kalauao Wells, Kalihi Corporation Yard, Kalihi Pump Station,

Kalihi Low to High Service Booster, Kalihi Uka Booster, Kaonohi Booster No. 2, Kunia Booster, Makakilo Booster
No. 1, Nanakuli Booster, Nu'uanu Reservoir No. 1, Punanani Wells, Wai'au Wells, Wai'alae lki Booster V,

Waihe'e Inclined Wells, Waipahu Wells Ill, Waipahu Wells IV, and Wilhelmina Rise 811 Reservoir.

► BWS processes payments through various methods: automatic bill payment (36.0%), lockbox (24.3%),

online customer portal (22.2%), BWS Cashiers (12.3%), Call Center (1.6%}, automated pay-by-phone (2.6%},
and Satellite City Hall locations (1.0%).
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To the Board of Directors 

Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Opinion 

6) 
ACCUITY 

Report of Independent Auditors 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Board of Water Supply (the "BWS"), a 

component unit of the City and County of Honolulu (the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, 

and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BWS's basic financial 

statements as listed in the index. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the BWS as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 

by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the BWS, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 

with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 2, the financial statements present only the activities of the BWS, and do not purport 

to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2024, the changes in its financial 

position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to 

this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, 

implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 

events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the BWS's ability to continue as a 

going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

999 Bishop Street 

Suite 1900 

Honolulu. HI 96813 

OFFICE 808.531.3400 

FAX 808.531.3433 

accuityllp.com 



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 

Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional! skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the BWS's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting

estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that

raise substantial doubt about the BWS's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period

of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 

that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 

discussion and analysis on pages 7 through 13 and the schedules of proportionate share of the net pension 

liability, pension contributions, changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios, and OPEB contributions 

on pages 48 through 53 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 

responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 

in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 

to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 

the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 

procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

G) 
ACCUITY 



Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise 

the BWS's basic financial statements. The schedules of bonds payable and net revenue requirement are 

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedules of bonds payable and net revenue requirement are the responsibility of management and 

was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 

basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 

audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 

such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 

statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules 

of bonds payable and net revenue requirement are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 

basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 

comprises the introduction but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors' report 

thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do 

not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 

basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 

on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 

exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15, 

2024 on our consideration of the BWS's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the BWS's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 

audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the BWS's internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Honolulu, Hawaii 

November 15, 2024 

G) 
ACCUITY 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

This section presents management's discussion and analysis ("MD&A") of the financial condition and activities for 

the Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu (the "BWS") for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

This information should be read in conjunction with the BWS's basic financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

The BWS approved another five-year rate adjustment schedule effective February 1, 2024 to continue to provide safe 
and dependable water to the customers and meet increased operating and infrastructure improvement expenses. 

In fiscal year 2024, water rate increased by 10%, which equates to $5.56 of the monthly water charges for a single­

family residential customer with average water consumption of 9,000 gallons per month. 

The BWS maintains a relatively strong financial performance with a manageable capital program. Meanwhile, 
management continues to carefully evaluate the BWS's finances to ensure optimum performance. In addition to 

meeting all debt covenants, outstanding debt and cash reserves were kept at levels appropriate for maintaining 

favorable bond ratings. Key financial highlights are listed below: 

• Net position increased by $89.5 million in fiscal year 2024, compared to the $46.0 million increase in fiscal year

2023.

• Total assets were $2.3 billion as of June 30, 2024 and $2.1 billion as of June 30, 2023, which exceeded liabilities

by $1.4 billion as of June 30, 2024 and $1.3 billion as of June 30, 2023.

• The BWS's unrestricted current assets at June 30, 2024 were 10.5 times its related current liabilities, compared

to 7.7 times atJune 30, 2023.

• The BWS's debt-to-equity ratio was 40.3% and 40.7% at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, indicating the

continuance of capacity to issue additional debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The BWS is a semi-autonomous agency of the City. The financial statements are presented using the economic 

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and expenses are recognized 

in the period earned or incurred. 

The MD&A represents management's analysis and comments on the BWS's financial condition and performance. 

Summary financial data, key financial and operational indicators used in the BWS's annual report, budget, bond 

resolutions, and other management tools were used for this analysis. 

The basic financial statements include the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses, and changes 

in net position, statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements. The statement of net position 

presents the resources and obligations of the BWS as of the end of the reporting period. The statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position presents the changes in net position for the fiscal year then ended, and the 

resultant ending net position balance. The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents 
(short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition), resulting from 
operating, investing, capital and related financing activities, and non-capital financing activities. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

Results of Operations 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

(Amounts in thousands) 

2024-2023 

Increase % 
2024 2023 (Decrease) Change 

Operating revenues $ 260,139 $ 244,712 $ 15,427 6.3% 
Operating expenses 

Administrative and general 69,760 68,375 1,385 2.0% 
Depreciation and amortization 50,343 53,381 {3,038) (5.7)% 
Power and pumping 44,609 44,761 (152) (0.3)%
Other operating expenses 55,367 48,445 6,922 14.3% 

Total operating expenses 220,079 214,962 5,117 2.4 % 
Operating income 40,060 29,750 10,310 34.7% 

Nonoperating income (expenses) 

Interest income 18,780 11,029 7,751 70.3% 
Interest expense {14,037) {13,579) (458) 3.4%
Others, net 23,806 (3,868) 27,674 (715.5)%

Total nonoperating income (expenses) 28,549 {6,4181 34,967 (544.8)%
Contributions in aid of construction 20,903 22,652 {1,749) (7.7)% 

Change in net position $ 89,512 $ 45,984 $ 43,528 94.7% 

Operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2024 totaled $260.1 million compared to $244.7 million for year 
ended June 30, 2023; an increase of $15.4 million or 6.3% from the year ended June 30, 2023. This was due to increases 
in water consumption for the single family residential class by $5.3 million, non-residential class by $5.1 million, and 
the multi-family residential class by $1.8 million in fiscal year 2024. 

Total operating expenses increased by $5.1 million in fiscal year 2024. Factors contributing to the increase are explained 
below: 

• Administrative and general expenses increased by $1.4 million in fiscal year 2024. The increase is due to health
benefits for active employees, employer's share of retirement contributions, and professional services increases.

• Other operating expenses increased by $6.9 million during fiscal year 2024 mainly due to the increase in
transmission and distribution, maintenance costs, and water reclamation.

• Power and pumping and depreciation expenses decreased in fiscal year 2024 to offset the increase in total of
operating expenses.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, net nonoperating income (expenses) increased by $35.0 million. This was the 
result of increases in Federal Grant Revenue of $9.0 million, net realized and unrealized gains on investments of 
$18.5 million, and increase in interest income by $7.8 million. 

8 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

Expenses by Functional Class 
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Contributions in aid of construction resulting from the Water System Facilities Charges (''WSFC") are levied against 
all new developments and residential properties requiring water from the BWS's systems. Those contributions do 
not include developments that have paid for and installed a complete water system including sources, transmission, 
and daily storage facilities . In addition, contributions of capital assets from governmental agencies, developers and 
customers are recorded at their cost as contributions in aid of construction. The BWS realized contributions in aid of 
construction of $20.9 million in fiscal year 2024 compared to $22.7 million in fiscal year 2023. The decrease was 
primarily due to decreases in contributions from government of $2.8 million and from developers of $2.5 million, 
offset by an increase in SRF debt principal forgiveness of $3.9 million. During the year ended June 30, 2024, the 
major developments were Kapolei Harborside Phase lA Backbone Roadway Improvements, Ho'opili Development 
Industrial Mixed-Use Improvement, and Ho'opili Developments at Honouliuli . 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

Financial Condition 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 

(Amounts in thousands) 

2024 2023 

Current assets $ 537,044 $ 348,588 

Noncurrent assets 

Capital assets, net 1,433,737 1,366,641 

Investments 184,466 224,594 

Restricted and other assets 121,793 196,113 

Total assets 2,277,040 2,135,936 

Deferred outflows of resources 43,795 45,215 

Total assets and deferred 

outflows of resources $2,320,835 $2,181,151 

Current liabilities $ 135,277 $ 104,656 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Bonds payable, noncurrent 429,634 393,665 

Notes payable, noncurrent 124,060 129,810 

Net pension liability 128,552 121,159 

Net OPEB liability 28,726 30,887 

Other liabilities 15,276 17,458 

Total liabilities 861,525 797,635 

Deferred inflows of resources 24,843 38,561 

Net position 

Net investment in capital assets 1,092,038 1,033,479 

Restricted for capital activity and debt service 4,039 15,741 

Unrestricted 338,390 295,735 

Total net position 1,434,467 1,344,955 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 

of resources, and net position $2,320,835 $2,181,151 

2024-2023 

Increase % 

(Decrease) Change 

$ 188,456 54.1% 

67,096 4.9% 

(40,128) (17.9)% 

(74,320) (37.9)% 

141,104 6.6% 

(1,420) (3.1)% 

$ 139,684 6.4% 

$ 30,621 29.3% 

35,969 9.1% 

(5,750) (4.4)% 

7,393 6.1% 

(2,161) {7.0)% 

(2,182) (12.5)% 

63,890 8.0% 

(13,718) (35.6)% 

58,559 5.7% 

(11,702) (74.3)% 

42,655 14.4% 

89,512 6.7% 

$ 139,684 6.4% 

The BWS's current assets were 4.0 times its related current liabilities as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The 

current investments increased by $89.0 million and current restricted assets increased by $119.7 million, offset by a 
decrease in current cash and cash equivalents of $26.6 million. The current liabilities also increased by $30.6 million 

as of June 30, 2024. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt 

During fiscal years 2024 and 2023, the BWS capitalized $46.5 million and $71. 7 million, respectively, to its utility plant 
in service. Major assets added during fiscal year 2024 were rehabilitation of Pipelines and Tunnels at Moanalua and 
Quarry Tunnels, $12.1 million; replacement of Diamond Head Line Booster Pump, $4.8 million; improvement of Kapolei 
Harborside Phase lA Backbone Roadway, $4.1 million; and rehabilitation of Barbers Point Line Booster Improvements, 
$2.4 million. 

The BWS issues long-term bonds to finance part of its capital improvement program. The BWS has maintained a low 
debt-to-equity ratio at 40.3% and 40.7% as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

All outstanding bonds have been assigned underlying ratings of AAA from S&P Global and AAA from Fitch Ratings. 

Rate Covenant 

The BWS is required under its bond indenture, among other things, to fix, charge and collect such rates and other 
charges in each fiscal year to meet the net revenue requirement for such fiscal year. The net revenue requirement 
is the greater of 1) the sum of the aggregate debt service and all deposits required by bond resolution to be made, 
or 2) 1.20 times the aggregate debt service. The BWS met the net revenue requirements for the year ended June 30, 
2024. 

Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility 

The U.S. Navy's Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility ("RHBFSF") consists of 20 steel-lined underground storage tanks 
that were built from 1940 to 1943. Each tank is 100 feet in diameter and 250 feet tall. The RHBFSF can store up to 
250 million gallons of fuel. The tanks are located 100 feet above the groundwater aquifer that the Navy uses to 
provide water to Pearl Harbor and the Board of Water Supply also uses to provide drinking water to its metropolitan 
Honolulu water system, spanning from Moanalua Valley to Hawaii Kai. Following the 27,000 gallon leak of jet fuel in 
January 2014, the Navy entered into an Administrative Order of Consent with the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency and Hawaii State Department of Health to conduct various studies to improve tank inspection, repair and 
maintenance practices, understand the condition of the tanks, identify upgrade alternatives, assess the risk of future 
leaks, determine the area's groundwater flow direction, and investigate and remediate releases. 

The Navy's RHBFSF experienced additional leaks in 2021. On December 2, 2021, the BWS shut down the Halawa Shaft 
pumping station to prevent any fuel contamination of the BWS Honolulu water system. The Halawa Shaft delivered 
20% of the water to the metropolitan Honolulu water system. On December 8, 2021, the BWS also shut down its 
'Aiea Well and Halawa Well to prevent such contamination. 

The BWS is pumping at higher rates from other well stations that also serve metropolitan Honolulu to make up for 
the production loss from shutting down the Halawa Shaft, 'Aiea Well, and Halawa Well. This condition is being 
monitored closely as extended pumping at higher rates can cause water salinity levels to rise and affect both the 
aquifer and the water pumped. Presently, the situation with the BWS wells serving urban Honolulu is stable. 
However, extended closure of these three sources could result in mandatory water conservation measures and 
moratoriums on new water use to prevent the effects of over pumping other well stations. 
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City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

On March 7, 2022, Lloyd Austin, Secretary of Defense, announced that the Navy would permanently close the RHBFSF. 

The tanks completed gravity defueling in March 2024 and is in the process of venting, cleaning and closing the facility. 

The Navy continues to work to determine the nature and extent of the contamination in the aquifer affecting its Red 

Hill Shaft water source. This finding is critical to determining the long-term impact of the contamination on the 

aquifer and to existing water sources in the area. 

Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), chemicals indicating petroleum contamination, were first detected in BWS

ground water monitoring well DH-43 located in Moanalua Valley on August 4, 2022. More recently, PAHs were also 

detected during regular water quality monitoring on May 13, 2024 and June 4, 2024, at the currently shutdown 

BWS 'Aiea Well. The PAH levels are very low and not expected to pose a significant threat to human health or the 
environment. Further study is warranted and BWS will increase the testing of its wells to monitor for any changes in 

levels and occurrence. The detections of PAHs affirm the necessity of the BWS's decision to shut down Halawa Shaft, 

Halawa Well, and 'Aiea Well to prevent any petroleum contamination in the aquifer from reaching those sources and 

ultimately entering the BWS urban Honolulu water system. 

The BWS is tracking the costs of its actions in response to this incident. The BWS cannot predict the ultimate costs of 

these actions or whether and to what extent it will be reimbursed by the Navy. The BWS's 2018 Long Range Financial 

Plan developed a scenario for handling a major water source contamination event. The related financial impact on 

the BWS's financial statements cannot be reasonably determined at this time. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the BWS's finances. Questions concerning any of 

the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the 

Board of Water Supply, City and County of Honolulu, 630 S. Beretania Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96843. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 

Assets 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Interest receivable 

Customer receivables 

Billed, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $3,840,468 

Unbilled 
Other receivables, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $510,868 

Materials and supplies 

Prepaid expenses 

Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Prepaid expenses 

Investments 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets 

Capital assets 

Infrastructure 

Building and improvements 

Equipment and machinery 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Land 

Construction work-in-progress 

Net capital assets 

Investments 

Restricted assets 

Investments 

Other assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred loss on refunding of debt and other 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 

Total deferred outflows of resources 
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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s 42,455,443 

256,342,919 

4,357,629 

19,379,196 

13,012,769 
932,342 

11,269,039 

1,226,218 

56,140,530 

21,762,425 

110,165,758 

537,044,268 

1,732,246,401 

208,931,462 

422,320,887 

2,363,498,750 

{1,305,376,930) 

1,058,121,820 

32,370,754 

343,244,419 

1,433,736,993 

184,465,537 

118,731,773 

3,061,194 

1,739,995,497 

2,277,039,765 

11,306,628 

21,848,999 

10,639,878 

43,795,505 
$2,320,835,270 

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Payable from current assets 

Accounts payable 

Contracts payable, including retainages 

Accrued vacation - current 

Accrued workers' compensation - current 

Other 

Total payable from current assets 

Payable from restricted assets 

Contracts payable, including retainages 

Accrued interest payable 

Bonds payable - current 

Notes payable - current 

Refundable advances 

Total payable from restricted assets 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Bonds payable - noncurrent 

Notes payable - noncurrent 

Net pension liability 

Net OPEB liability 

Accrued vacation - noncurrent 

Accrued workers' compensation - noncurrent 

Customer advances 

Claims liabilities 

Other 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 

Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for capital activity and debt service 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 16,077,573 

8,820,439 

3,518,528 

995,580 

3,791,267 

33,203,387 

28,064,348 

7,049,674 

15,150,000 

8,679,223 

43,130,629 

102,073,874 

135,277,261 

429,633,547 

124,059,885 

128,552,203 

28,725,876 

4,179,747 

2,401,336 

475,135 

3,747,742 

4,472,020 

726,247,491 

861,524,752 

3,994,124 

18,477,408 

2,371,766 

24,843,298 

1,092,038,163 

4,038,638 

338,390,419 

1,434,467,220 

$2,320,835,270 

(concluded) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Operating revenues 

Water sales 

Other, principally contract and service fees 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 

Administrative and general 

Depreciation and amortization 

Power and pumping 

Transmission and distribution 

Maintenance 

Water reclamation 

Customers' accounting and collection 

Central administrative services expense fees 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating income (expenses) 

Interest income 

Interest expense, net of amortization of bond premiums of $2,502,422 

Bond issuance costs 

Gain from disposal of capital assets 

Net increase in the fair value of investments 

Federal grant revenue 

Other 

Total nonoperating income, net 

Contributions in aid of construction 

Change in net position 

Net position 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 257,491,103 

2,648,337 

260,139,440 

69,759,639 

50,342,969 

44,608,679 

27,574,520 

14,230,694 

6,174,438 

4,088,262 

3,300,000 

220,079,201 

40,060,239 

18,780,333 

(14,036,558) 

(531,150) 

44,880 

14,903,120 

9,035,346 

352,845 

28,548,816 

20,902,708 

89,511,763 

1,344,955,457 

$1,434,467,220 



















Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

Investments are reported at fair value, except for investments in commingled and money market funds, 
which are reported at net asset value ("NAV"). The NAV is based on the fair value of the underlying assets 
held by the respective fund less its liabilities. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the City and County of Honolulu's Public Employees' 
Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), adopted pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The 
Plan permits eligible employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation 
amounts are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 

A trust fund was established to protect plan assets from claims of general creditors and from diversion to 
any uses other than paying benefits to participants and beneficiaries. Accordingly, the BWS has excluded 
the Plan's assets and liabilities from the financial statements because the BWS and the City do not have 
significant administrative involvement in the Plan nor perform the investment function for the Plan. 

Risk Management 

The BWS is exposed to various risks of loss from: (1) torts, (2) theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, 
(3) employee injuries and illnesses, (4) natural disasters, and (5) employee health, dental and accident benefits.
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters.

The ranges of insurance limits and deductibles are as follows: 

Limit 

Policy (in millions) Deductibles 

Property $60 $ 500,000 

Public entity liability 10 1,000,000 

Excess workers' compensation 25 600,000 

Employment practices 5 100,000 

Storage tank liability 6 10,000 

Pollution legal liability 5 1,000,000 

Crime 5 25,000 

Cyber liability 3 100,000 

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverages from the prior fiscal year. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 99 

The GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, in April 2022. This Statement enhances comparability 
in accounting and financial reporting and improves the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing 
(1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB

Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. Certain requirements of this
Statement were effective upon issuance, while other requirements were effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2022 and periods beginning after June 15, 2023. The provisions effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2023 clarified the accounting and financial reporting requirements for financial guarantees. BWS
did not have any such arrangements as of June 30, 2024.
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

7. Bonds Payable

At June 30, 2024, bonds payable consisted of the following: 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A, annual principal due ranging from 
$1,035,000 to $3,165,000 through July 1, 2049, with interest ranging from 2.50% 

to 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B, annual principal due ranging from 
$580,000 to $5,370,000 through July 1, 2033, with interest ranging from 1.72% to 2.38%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A, annual principal due ranging from 
$855,000 to $2,955,000 through July 1, 2050, with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021B, annual principal due ranging from 
$60,000 to $8,155,000 through July 1, 2031, with interest ranging from 0.52% to 2.07%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A, annual principal due ranging from 
$1,385,000 to $4,290,000 through July 1, 2051, with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B, annual principal due ranging from 
$55,000 to $8,770,000 through July 1, 2036, with interest ranging from 2.14% to 3.14%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2023, annual principal due ranging from 
$565,000 to $885,000 through July 1, 2048, with interest of 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024A, annual principal due ranging from 
$0 to $7,325,000 through July 1, 2053, with interest ranging from 4.0% to 5.25%. 

Add: Unamortized premium 

Less: Current portion 
Noncurrent portion 

$ 55,840,000 

44,960,000 

48,265,000 

40,025,000 

81,315,000 

51,805,000 

17,425,000 

72,815,000 

412,450,000 

32,333,547 

444,783,547 

15,150,000 
$ 429,633,547 

The BWS has pledged future revenues, net of specified operating and maintenance expenses, for the 
security and payment of the water system revenue bonds outstanding. Proceeds from the bonds were used 
to finance the construction of various components of the water system or to refund the principal amounts 
of previously issued water system revenue bonds. As of June 30, 2024, the total principal and interest 
remaining to be paid on the bonds totaled $625,276,000. Aggregate debt service for the current year and 
revenues, net of specified operating and maintenance expenses, were approximately $28,017,000 and 
$111,693,000, respectively. 

The BWS's outstanding water system revenue bonds contain a provision that, in the event of a default, the 
holders of not less than 25% of the bonds may declare the principal and interest due immediately. An event 
of default includes, but is not limited to, the following situations: failure to pay the principal and interest 
due, failure to punctually perform any of the covenants, agreements or conditions of the resolution, and 
bankruptcy. The BWS has covenanted and agreed to maintain the water system in good repair; to fix rates 
and charges sufficient to meet the Net Revenue Requirement, as defined in the bond indenture; not to 
dispose of the properties comprising the water system; to maintain and keep proper books; and other 
actions consistent with conducting the business of the water system in an efficient and economical manner. 

31 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

8. 

In April 2024, the BWS issued $72,815,000 in Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024A, to fund the costs 

of certain improvements, betterments and extensions of the Water System and to provide the funds needed 
to refund certain outstanding water system revenue bonds previously issued by the BWS. This resulted in 

present value savings of $503,600 and bond issuance costs of $531,150. 

As of June 30, 2024, the total amount of debt defeased for financial reporting purposes that remains 
outstanding was $110,655,000. 

Water system revenue bonds are subject to redemption on and after specific dates prior to maturity at the 
option of the BWS. The redemption amount equals the outstanding principal amount plus accrued interest 
without premium on the date of redemption. 

Debt service requirements on bonds payable at June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Principal Interest 

Years ending June 30, 

2025 $ 15,150,000 $ 13,864,000 

2026 16,865,000 14,178,000 

2027 17,690,000 13,590,000 

2028 18,195,000 13,082,000 

2029-2033 95,505,000 57,126,000 

2034-2038 72,510,000 42,865,000 

2039-2043 51,995,000 31,656,000 

2044-2048 63,460,000 20,180,000 

2049-2054 61,080,000 6,285,000 

$ 412,450,000 $ 212,826,000 

Notes Payable 

At June 30, 2024, notes payable from direct borrowings consisted of the following: 

Notes payable to Department of Health 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $146,900, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due May 2034. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $145,900, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due May 2034. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $144,000, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due November 2034. 

Non-interest bearing note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately 

$202,000, including loan fees at 1.0% per annum, due November 2034. 

Non-interest bearing note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately 

$764,900, including loan fees at 1.0% per annum, due April 2034. 

Subtotal 
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Total 

$ 29,014,000 

31,043,000 

31,280,000 

31,277,000 

152,631,000 

115,375,000 

83,651,000 

83,640,000 

67,365,000 

$ 625,276,000 

$ 2,543,190 

2,526,168 

2,602,351 

3,737,618 

13,538,928 

24,948,255 
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9. 

The BWS's outstanding state revolving fund loans contain a provision that, in the event of default, the 

outstanding amounts become due immediately with the consent of the majority of the holders of the BWS's 

water system revenue bonds. An event of default includes, but is not limited to, the following situations: 

failure to pay the principal and interest due; failure to punctual!ly perform any of the covenants, agreements 

or conditions of the resolution; and bankruptcy. The BWS has covenanted and agreed to maintain the water 

system in good repair; to fix rates and charges sufficient to meet the Net Revenue Requirement, as defined 

in the bond indenture; not to dispose of the properties comprising the water system; to maintain and keep 

proper books; and other actions consistent with conducting the business of the water system in an efficient 

and economical manner. 

Debt service requirements on notes payable from direct borrowings at June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Principal Interest Loan Fee Total 

Years ending June 30, 

2025 $ 8,679,000 $ 427,000 $ 1,446,000 $ 10,552,000 

2026 8,631,000 394,000 1,354,000 10,379,000 

2027 8,687,000 367,000 1,261,000 10,315,000 

2028 8,782,000 342,000 1,167,000 10,291,000 

2029 8,879,000 316,000 1,072,000 10,267,000 

2030-2034 45,891,000 1,174,000 3,895,000 50,960,000 

2035-2039 34,598,000 505,000 1,625,000 36,728,000 

2040-2044 8,592,000 44,000 203,000 8,839,000 

$132,739,000 $ 3,569,000 $ 12,023,000 $ 148,331,000 

Long-Term Liabilities 

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Balance Balance Current 

July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 Portion 

Bonds payable $ 380,565,000 $ 72,815,000 $ {40,930,000) $ 412,450,000 $ 15,150,000 

Add: Unamortized premium 27,944,819 7,070,437 (2,681,709) 32,333,547 

Total bonds payable 408,509,819 79,885,437 {43,611,709) 444,783,547 15,150,000 

Notes payable 138,272,795 7,820,251 (13,353,938) 132,739,108 8,679,223 

Accrued vacation 7,848,114 3,368,689 (3,518,528) 7,698,275 3,518,528 

Accrued workers' compensation 3,460,264 936,936 (1,000,284) 3,396,916 995,580 

Customer advances 1,436,541 6,461,578 {7,422,984} 475,135 

Net pension liability 121,159,266 60,121,979 {52,729,042} 128,552,203 

Net OPEB liability 30,887,069 12,791,518 {14,952,711} 28,725,876 

Claims liability 3,255,206 1,958,403 {1,465,867} 3,747,742 

Lease liability 538,195 235,030 {286,973} 486,252 

Subscription liability 2,036,707 228,952 {714,246} 1,551,413 

Other 3,046,579 249,998 (862,222} 2,434,355 

$ 720,450,555 $174,058,771 $ {139,918,504} $ 754,590,822 $ 28,343,331 
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10. Net Position

The BWS's net position consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024:

Net investment in capital assets

Capital assets, net

Deferred loss on refunding of debt

Less: Water system revenue bonds payable

Less: Notes payable

Unspent debt proceeds

Restricted for capital activity and debt service

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted prepaid expenses

Restricted investments

Less: Unspent debt proceeds

Less: Accrued interest payable

Less: Contracts payable

Less: Refundable advances

Unrestricted

11. Leases

$1,433,736,993 

11,306,628 

(444,783,547) 

(132,739,108) 

224,517,197 

1,092,038,163 

56,140,530 

21,762,425 

228,897,531 

(224,517,197) 

(7,049,674) 

(28,064,348) 

(43,130,629) 

4,038,638 

338,390,419 
$1,434,467,220 

The BWS leases certain properties to other users, primarily utility and telecommunications companies,
under multi-year license agreements with terms ranging from five to thirty years through December 2041.
At June 30, 2024, lease receivables of approximately $2,572,000 were reported in other assets. For the
year ended June 30, 2024, lease revenue and interest revenue of approximately $151,000 and $70,000,
respectively, were reported in other nonoperating revenues.

The BWS leases space for its deep seawater cooling project on O'ahu under a lease that extends through
September 2025. The BWS also has leases conveying the right to use various office and information technology
equipment under contracts that extend through May 2029.

12. Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

The BWS has agreements conveying the right to use various information technology systems under contracts
that extend through April 2028.
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13. 

The future principal and interest requirements for the subscription liability at June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

Years ending June 30, 

2025 $ 744,000 $ 52,000 $ 796,000 

2026 461,000 24,000 485,000 
2027 211,000 10,000 221,000 

2028 135,000 3,000 138,000 
$ 1,551,000 $ 89,000 $ 1,640,000 

Related Party Transactions 

The BWS has an agreement with the City's Department of Environmental Services to provide certain services 
relating to the billing and collection of sewer service charges. For the year ended June 30, 2024, fees related 
to these services totaled approximately $3,831,000, which are netted against operating expenses on the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

The BWS has an agreement with the City to pay a central administrative services expense ("CASE") fee for 
treasury, personnel, purchasing and other services that the City provides to the BWS on an on-going basis. 
The BWS's Charter allows for CASE fees to the extent that they represent reasonable charges for services 
necessary for the BWS to perform its duties. CASE fees totaled $3,300,000 for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

As of June 30, 2024, amounts due from the City for water charges totaled approximately $987,000 and are 
included in customer receivables in the statement of net position. 

The BWS has entered into several agreements with the City for joint capital projects. As of June 30, 2024, 
the unexpended advanced funds totaled approximately $1,156,000. 

14. Retirement Benefits

Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Employees' Retirement System ("ERS") is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement
system established as a defined benefit pension plan to administer a pension benefits program for all eligible
employees of the state and counties of Hawaii. Benefit terms, eligibility, and contribution requirements are
governed by Chapter 88 of the HRS and can be amended through legislation. The ERS issues publicly available
annual financial reports that can be obtained at the ERS website: http:ljers.ehawaii.gov/resources/financials.

Benefits Provided
The ERS Pension Trust is comprised of three pension classes for membership purposes and considered to be a
single plan for accounting purposes since all assets of the ERS may legally be used to pay the benefits of any
of the ERS members or beneficiaries. The ERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits with three
membership classes known as the noncontributory, contributory and hybrid retirement classes. The three
classes provide a monthly retirement allowance equal to the benefit multiplier (generally 1.25% or 2.25%)
multiplied by the average final compensation multiplied by years of credited service. Average final
compensation for members hired prior to July 1, 2012 is an average of the highest salaries during any three
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years of credited service, excluding any salary paid in lieu of vacation for members hired January 1, 1971 or 

later and the average of the highest salaries during any five years of credited service including any salary 

paid in lieu of vacation for members hired prior to January 1, 1971. For members hired after June 30, 2012, 

average final compensation is an average of the highest salaries during any five years of credited service 

excluding any salary paid in lieu of vacation. 

Each retiree's original retirement allowance is increased on each July 1 beginning the calendar year after 

retirement. Retirees first hired as members prior to July 1, 2012 receive a 2.5% increase each year of their 

original retirement allowance without a ceiling. Retirees first hired as members after June 30, 2012 receive a 

1.5% increase each year of their original retirement allowance without a ceiling. The annual increase is not 

compounded. 

The following summarizes the provIsIons relevant to the largest employee groups of the respective 

membership class. Retirement benefits for certain groups, such as police officers, firefighters, some 

investigators, sewer workers, judges, and elected officials, vary from general employees. 

Noncontributory Class 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 1.25% of average final

compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. Employees with ten years of credited service

are eligible to retire at age 62. Employees with thirty years of credited service are eligible to retire at

age 55.

• Disability Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of

service and receive a lifetime pension of 35% of their average final compensation. Ten years of credited

service are required for ordinary disability. Ordinary disability benefits are determined in the same

manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately, without an actuarial reduction, and at a

minimum of 12.5% of average final compensation.

• Death Benefits - For service-connected deaths, the surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary receives a

monthly benefit of 30% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a new

reciprocal beneficiary relationship. Additional benefits are payable to surviving dependent children up

to age 18. If there is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or surviving dependent children, no benefit is

payable.

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at the time of death with at least

ten years of credited service. The surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary (until remarriage/re-entry

into a new reciprocal beneficiary relationship) and surviving dependent children (up to age 18) receive

a benefit equal to a percentage of the member's accrued maximum allowance unreduced for age or; if the

member was eligible for retirement at the time of death, the surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary

receives 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension and the surviving dependent children receive a

percentage of the member's accrued maximum allowance unreduced for age.

Contributory Class for Members Hired Prior to July 1
1 

2012 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 2% of average final

compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with five years of credited

service are eligible to retire at age 55.
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• Disability Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of

service and receive a one-time payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest plus a

lifetime pension of 50% of their average final compensation. Ten years of credited service are required
for ordinary disability. Ordinary disability benefits are determined as 1. 75% of average final compensation

multiplied by the years of credited service but are payable immediately, without an actuarial reduction,

and at a minimum of 30% of average final compensation.

• Death Benefits - For service-connected deaths, the designated surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary

receives a lump sum payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest plus a monthly

benefit of 50% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a new reciprocal
beneficiary relationship. If there is no surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary, surviving dependent

children (up to age 18) or dependent parents are eligible for the monthly benefit. If there is no

spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or surviving dependent children/parents, the ordinary death benefit is

payable to the designated beneficiary.

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at time of death with at least one

year of service. Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum payment of the member's contributions

and accrued interest plus a percentage of the salary earned in the twelve months preceding death, or

50% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was not eligible for retirement at the time of

death but was credited with at least ten years of service and designated one beneficiary, or 100% joint

and survivor lifetime pension if the member was eligible for retirement at the time of death and

designated one beneficiary.

Contributory Class for Members Hired After June 30. 2012 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 1. 75% of average final

compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with ten years of credited
service are eligible to retire at age 60.

• Disability and Death Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of

length of service and receive a lifetime pension of 50% of their average final compensation plus refund

of contributions and accrued interest. Ten years of credited service are required for ordinary disability.

Death benefits for contributory members hired after June 30, 2012 are generally the same as those for

contributory members hired June 30, 2012 and prior.

Hybrid Class for Members Hired Prior to July 1. 2012 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 2% of average final

compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with five years of credited

service are eligible to retire at age 62. General employees with thirty years of credited service are

eligible to retire at age 55.

• Disability Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of

service and receive a lifetime pension of 35% of their average final compensation plus refund of their

contributions and accrued interest. Ten years of credited service are required for ordinary disability.
Ordinary disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable

immediately, without an actuarial reduction, and at a minimum of 25% of average final compensation.
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• Death Benefits - For service-connected deaths, the designated surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary

receives a lump sum payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest plus a monthly benefit

of 50% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a new reciprocal beneficiary

relationship. If there is no surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary, surviving dependent children (up to

age 18) or dependent parents are eligible for the monthly benefit. If there is no spouse/reciprocal
beneficiary or surviving dependent children/parents, the ordinary death benefit is payable to the

designated beneficiary.

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at time of death with at least five 
years of service. Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum payment of the member's contributions 
and accrued interest plus a percentage multiplied by 150%, or 50% joint and survivor lifetime pension 

if the member was not eligible for retirement at the time of death but was credited with at least ten 

years of service and designated one beneficiary, or 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the 

member was eligible for retirement at the time of death and designated one beneficiary. 

Hybrid Class for Members Hired After June 30
1 

2012 

• Retirement Benefits- General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 1.75% of average final

compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with ten years of credited

service are eligible to retire at age 65. Employees with thirty years of credited service are eligible to
retire at age 60. Sewer workers, water safety officers, and emergency medical technicians may retire

with 25 years of credited service at age 55.

• Disability and Death Benefits - Provisions for disability and death benefits generally remain the same

except for ordinary death benefits. Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active
at time of death with at least ten years of service. Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum
payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest, or 50% joint and survivor lifetime pension

if the member was not eligible for retirement at the time of death but was credited with at least ten
years of service and designated one beneficiary, or 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the

member was eligible for retirement at the time of death and designated one beneficiary.

Contributions 

The employer contribution rate is a fixed percentage of compensation. The employer contribution rate for 
general employees was 24% for the year ended June 30, 2024. For the year ended June 30, 2024, contributions 

to the pension plan from the BWS totaled approximately $11,272,000. 

The employer is required to make all contributions for noncontributory members. For contributory class 

employees hired prior to July 1, 2012, general employees are required to contribute 7.8% of their salary. 
For contributing class employees hired after June 30, 2012, general employees are required to contribute 
9.8% of their salary. Hybrid class members hired prior to July 1, 2012 are required to contribute 6.0% of 
their salary. Hybrid class members hired after June 30, 2012 are required to contribute 8.0% of their salary. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2024, the BWS reported a liability of approximately $128,552,000, for its proportionate share of 

the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension 

liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. 
The BWS's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the actual employer contributions to the 
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pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 2023, the BWS's 
proportionate share was 0.93%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the BWS recognized pension expense of approximately $12,412,000. 
At June 30, 2024, the BWS reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2,532,849 $ 1,319,309 

Changes of assumptions 42,330 1,155,934 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 1,399,208 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 6,602,415 1,518,881 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 11,272,197 

$ 21,848,999 $ 3,994,124 

At June 30, 2024, the BWS reported approximately $11,272,000 of deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions resulting from BWS contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized 
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2024 will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

Net Deferred 

Outflows 

Years ending June 30, 

2025 $ 1,351,199 

2026 (903,167) 

2027 4,602,170 

2028 1,492,336 

2029 40,140 

$ 6,582,678 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Investment rate of return, including inflation at 2.50% 
Projected salary increases, including inflation at 2.50% 

General employees 
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Mortality rates used in the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023 were based on the following: 

• Active members - Scale MP-2022 mortality table for active employees based on the occupation of the

member.

• Healthy retirees - The 2022 Public Retirees of Hawaii mortality tables. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by Scale MP from the year 2022 (with immediate convergence) and with multiplier

and setbacks based on plan and group experience.

• Disabled retirees - Base Table for healthy retiree's occupation, set forward three years, generational
projection using the MP projection table from the year 2022 with immediate convergence. Minimum

mortality rate of 3.5% for males and 2.5% for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023 were based on the results of 
an experience study as of June 30, 2021, with most of the assumptions based on the period from July 1, 

2016 through June 30, 2021. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a "top down 

approach" of the Client-Constrained Simulation-based Optimization Model (a statistical technique known 

as "re-sampling with replacement" that directly keys in on specific plan-level risk factors as stipulated by the 

ERS Board) in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 

pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 

combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected nominal real rates 

of return (real returns+ inflation) by the target asset allocation percentage. The rate of returns, based on 

ERS's investment consultant as of June 30, 2023, is summarized in the following table: 

Discount Rate 

Strategic Allocation 

{Risk-Based Classes) 

Broad growth 

Diversifying strategies 

Target 

Allocation 

6 5 .00% 

35 .00% 

100.00% 

*Uses an expected inflation of 2.6%.

Expected Long­

Term Geometric 

Average Return* 

8.70% 

5 .20% 

7.70% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2023 was 7.00%. The projection of 

cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the 

current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, 
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected 

to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. 

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension p,lan investments was applied to all periods of 

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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Sensitivity of the BWS's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the BWS's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated as of the year 
ended June 30, 2024 using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the BWS's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 

or one percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

1% Decrease 

(6.00%) 

$ 171,003,959 

Current 

Discount Rate 

(7.00%} 

$ 128,552,203 

1% Increase 

(8.00%) 

$ 93,394,831 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ER5 
financial report. ERS's complete financial statements are available at https://ers.ehawaii.gov/resources/financials. 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2024, the amounts payable to the ERS totaled approximately $1,436,000, which consists of 
excess pension costs required by the HRS for fiscal year 2024. 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions ("OPEB") 

Plan Description 

Chapter 87A of the HRS established the EUTF, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan, which 
provides a single delivery system of health and other benefits for state and county workers, retirees and 
their eligible dependents. The EUTF issues a stand-alone financial report that is available to the public on 

its website at https://eutf.hawaii.gov/reports. The report may also be obtained by submitting a request to 
the EUTF at 201 Merchant Street, Suite 1700, Honolulu, HI 96813. 

Benefits Provided 

Chapter 87A of the HRS grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the board of 
trustees of the EUTF. The EUTF currently provides medical, prescription drug, dental, vision, chiropractic, 
supplemental medical and prescription drug, and group life insurance benefits for retirees and their 
dependents. The following table provides a summary of the number of employees covered by the benefit 
terms as of July 1, 2023: 

Contributions 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Inactive employees entitled but not yet receiving benefits 

Active employees 

597 

50 

549 
1,196 

The BWS's contribution levels are established by Chapter 87 A of the HRS. For the year ended June 30, 2024, 
the BWS was required to contribute a minimum amount equal to 100% of the annual required contribution 
("ARC"), as determined by an actuary retained by the board of trustees of the EUTF. The ARC represents a 
level of funding that is sufficient to cover (1) the normal cost, which is the cost of the other postemployment 
benefits attributable to the current year of service; and (2) an amortization payment, which is a catch-up 

42 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

payment for past service costs to fund the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over the next thirty years. 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, contributions to the OPEB plan from the BWS totaled $8,303,000, which 

resulted in an average contribution rate of approximately 19% of covered-employee payroll. 

For employees hired before July 1, 1996, the BWS pays the entire base monthly contribution for employees 

retiring with ten or more years of credited service, and 50% of the base monthly contribution for employees 

retiring with fewer than ten years of credited service. A retiree can elect a family plan to cover dependents. 

The BWS's contribution is based on the plan selected by the retiree (single, two-party, or family plans). 

For employees hired after June 30, 1996, but before July 1, 2001, and who retire with fewer than ten years 
of service, the BWS makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least ten years but fewer than 15 years 
of service, the BWS pays 50% of the base monthly contribution. For those retiring with at least 15 years but 

fewer than 25 years of service, the BWS pays 75% of the base monthly contribution. For those employees 

retiring with at least 25 years of service, the BWS pays 100% of the base monthly contribution. The BWS's 
contribution is based on the plan selected by the retiree (single, two-party, or family plans). 

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2001, and who retire with fewer than ten years of service, the BWS 
makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least ten years but fewer than 15 years of service, the 

BWS pays 50% of the base monthly contribution. For those retiring with at least 15 years but fewer than 

25 years of service, the BWS pays 75% of the base monthly contribution. For those employees retiring with 

at least 25 years of service, the BWS pays 100% of the base monthly contribution. Only single plan coverage 

is provided for retirees in this category. Retirees can elect family coverage, but must pay the difference. 

Net OPEB Liability 

The BWS's net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2024 was measured as of July 1, 2023, and the total OPEB liability 

used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 

assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

PPO* 

HMO* 

Part B and base monthly contribution 

Dental 

Vision 

Life insurance 

2.50% 

3.75% to 6.75% including inflation 

7.00% 

Initial rate of 6.3%, declining to a rate of 4.25% after 21 years 

Initial rate of 6.3%, declining to a rate of 4.25% after 21 years 

Initial rate of 5.0%, declining to a rate of 4.25% after 21 years 

4.00% 

2.50% 

0.00% 

*Blended rates for medical and prescription drugs.
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Mortality rates used in the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2023 were based on the system-specific mortality 

tables utilizing ultimate scale MP-2021 to project generational mortality improvement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2023 were based on the results of an 

experience study as of June 30, 2021, with most of the assumptions based on the period from July 1, 2016 

through June 30, 2021. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 

method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB 

plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined 

to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by 

the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best 

estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of July 1, 2023 are summarized in 

the following table: 

Discount Rate 

Asset Class 

Global equity 

Private equity 

Real assets 

Private credit 

Trend following 

Long treasuries 

TIPS 

Reinsurance 

Alternative risk premia 

U.S. microcap 

Tail risk/ Long volatility 

Total investments 

Long-Term 

Target Expected Real 

Allocation Rate of Return 

27.50% 7.60% 

15.00 % 10.00% 

12.00% 4.30% 

10.00% 7.80% 

10.00% 2.40% 

5.50% 2.40% 

5.00% 2.00% 

5.00% 3.40% 

5.00% 3.30% 

3.00% 8.70% 

2.00% (1.10%) 

100.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2024 was 7.00%. The projection of 

cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that BWS contributions will be made at rates equal 

to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary 

net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current active 

and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was 

applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
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Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

The following schedules present the changes in the net OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2024: 

Increase (Decrease) 

Total OPEB NetOPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at July 1, 2023 $ 149,928,478 $ 119,041,409 $ 30,887,069 

Changes for the fiscal year 

Service cost 2,404,066 2,404,066 

Interest on the total OPEB liability 10,342,694 10,342,694 

Difference between expected and actual experience {1,297,649) {1,297,649) 

Changes of assumptions 

Contributions - employer 8,180,000 {8,180,000) 

Net investment income 5,475,062 {5,475,062) 

Benefit payments {6,755,471) {6,755,471) 

Administrative expense {7,948) 7,948 

Other {36,810) 36,810 

Net changes 4,693,640 6,854,833 (2,161,193) 

Balance at June 30, 2024 $ 154,622,118 $ 125,896,242 $ 28,725,876 

The healthcare trend assumption was updated in the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation to reflect the 2022 ERS 

actuarial experience study, which resulted in an increase to the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2024. 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the BWS, as well as what the BWS's net OPEB liability would 

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point 

higher than the current discount rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

1% Decrease 

(6.00%) 

$ 50,248,191 

Discount Rate 

(7.00%) 

$ 28,725,876 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

1% Increase 

(8.00%) 

$ 11,513,772 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the BWS, as well as what the BWS's net OPEB liability would be 

if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage 

point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease 

Net OPEB liability $ 9,728,147 
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OPES Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Related to OPES 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the BWS recognized OPEB expense of approximately $1,368,000. At 
June 30, 2024, the BWS reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 

to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience s s 15,096,479 

Changes of assumptions 74,148 3,380,929 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on OPEB plan investments 2,262,730 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 8,303,000 

s 10,639,878 $ 18,477,408 

At June 30, 2024, the BWS reported $8,303,000 as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting 
from BWS contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB at June 30, 2024 will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30, 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Contract Commitments 

Net Deferred 

Inflows 

$ {6,371,321) 

(6,399,001) 

{1,321,028) 

{1,844,711) 

{204,469) 
$ (16,140,530) 

Commitments, primarily for capital improvements, approximated $549,949,000 as of June 30, 2024. Such 
amounts are to be funded by operating revenues, contributed capital, cash and investments on hand. 

Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Liability 

The BWS is self-insured for workers' compensation and disability claims up to $600,000 and in excess of 
$25,000,000. The BWS has obtained excess insurance coverage for claims that are not self-insured. The 
BWS provides reserves for claims not covered by insurance that in the opinion of management will result in 
probable judgment against the BWS. 
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The liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses is comp,rised of case reserves and incurred but not 
reported loss reserves ("IBNR"). Case or outstanding loss reserves represent estimates of ultimate costs to 
settle reported claims. 

Determination of a reserve account for workers' compensation is a significant estimate. It is reasonably 
possible that one or more future events could result in a material change in the estimated claims loss in the 
near term. 

Safe Drinking Water 

The BWS is subject to the requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act (the "Act"), which is administered by 
the State Department of Health on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Management believes 
that the BWS is in full compliance with the requirements of the Act and is not aware of any matters under 
the Act that may materially affect the BWS's customer service area. 

Temporary Hazard Pay 

Public worker unions in Hawaii are currently pursuing claims for temporary hazard pay. To date, the BWS 
has not paid any COVID-related temporary hazard pay. As part of the City and County of Honolulu, the BWS 
will be bound by the decisions rendered in the ongoing arbitration proceedings related to COVID-related 
temporary hazard pay. Due to the current status and availability of information, the BWS has not accrued 
any liability as of June 30, 2024. 

Other Legal Matters 

The BWS is party to various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The outcome of 
individual matters is not predictable. However, management believes that the ultimate resolution of all 
such matters, after considering insurance coverage, will not have a material adverse effect on the BWS's 
financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. 

16. Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility

The Navy reported a fuel spill from its Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility ("RHBFSF") in late November 2021.
On December 2, 2021, following the Navy's determination that its Red Hill Shaft water source was contaminated
with petroleum from that leak, the BWS immediately shut down the Halawa Shaft pumping station. On
December 8, 2021, the BWS took further precautionary measures and shut down its 'Aiea Well and Halawa
Well. On March 7, 2022, the Secretary of Defense directed the Navy to permanently close the RHBFSF. The
tanks completed gravity defueling in March 2024 and is in the process of venting, cleaning and closing the
facility.

The BWS remains vigilant in protecting its current water sources as well as developing new water sources.
The related financial impact on the BWS's financial statements cannot be reasonably determined at this
time.
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Proportion Proportionate 

Measurement of the Net Share of the 

Period Pension Net Pension Covered 

Ended Liability Liability Payroll 

June 30, 2023 0.93% $ 128,552,203 $ 39,568,266 

June 30, 2022 0.93% 121,159,266 39,674,737 

June 30, 2021 0.87% 106,763,854 41,699,341 

June 30, 2020 0.87% 132,989,070 39,537,387 

June 30, 2019 0.81% 114,807,821 38,390,927 

June 30, 2018 0.90% 120,348,341 36,816,067 

June 30, 2017 0.88% 113,350,294 35,912,898 

June 30, 2016 0.87% 116,342,916 34,536,085 

June 30, 2015 0.93% 81,526,553 33,412,761 

June 30, 2014 0.91% 73,141,824 32,202,276 

Proportionate Plan 

Share of the Fiduciary Net 

Net Pension Position as a 

Liability as a Percentage 

Percentage of the Total 

of Covered Pension 

Payroll Liability 

325% 61.91 % 

305% 62.80% 

256% 64.25 % 

336% 53.18 % 

299% 54.87 % 

327% 55.48% 

316% 54.80 % 

337% 51.28 % 

244% 62.42 % 

227% 63.92 % 

See report of independent auditors and accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Pension Contributions 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Contributions 

in Relation to 

Statutorily Statutorily 

Required Required 

Year Ended Contribution Contributions 

June 30, 2024 $11,272,197 $11,272,197 

June 30, 2023 11,376,565 11,376,565 

June 30, 2022 10,978,412 10,978,412 

June 30, 2021 10,642,688 10,642,688 

June 30, 2020 9,411,347 9,411,347 

June 30, 2019 7,387,857 7,387,857 

June 30, 2018 7,561,614 7,561,614 

June 30, 2017 6,885,401 6,885,401 

June 30, 2016 6,647,884 6,647,884 

June 30, 2015 6,686,641 6,686,641 

Contributions 

Contribution as a Percentage 

Deficiency Covered of Covered 

(Excess) Payroll Payroll 

$ $40,982,176 27.5% 

39,568,266 28.8% 

39,674,737 27.7% 

41,699,341 25.5 % 

39,537,387 23.8% 

38,390,927 .19.2 % 

36,816,067 20.5% 

35,912,898 19.2 % 

34,536,085 19.2 % 

33,412,761 20.0% 

See report of independent auditors and accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Note to Required Supplementary Information Required by GASB Statement No. 68 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

1. Changes of Assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that significantly affected the measurement of the

total pension liability since the measurement period ended June 30, 2019.

Amounts reported in the schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability as of the

measurement period ended June 30, 2023 (year ended June 30, 2024) were impacted by the following

changes in actuarial assumptions:

• The assumed salary increase schedules include an ultimate component for general wage inflation that
may add on additional increases for individual merit and then an additional component for step rates

based on service.

• Mortality rates generally decreased due to the continued improvements in using a fully generational

approach and Scale MP-2021.

• The rates of turnover were lowered to reflect recent experience.

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

2024 2023 2022 2021 

Total OPEB liability 

Service cost $ 2,404,066 $ 2,607,754 $ 2,597,273 $ 2,663,788 
Interest on the total OPEB liability 10,342,694 11,172,814 11,002,680 11,182,364 
Difference between expected and actual experience (1,297,649) {14,141,673) {5,031,426) {9,526,120) 
Changes of assumptions (4,884,122) (822,863) 
Benefit payments !6,755,471) !6,268,080! !6,018,504! !6,043,131! 

Net change in total OPEB liability 4,693,640 (11,513,307) 2,550,023 (2,545,962) 
Total OPEB liability 

Beginning of year 149,928,478 161,441,785 158,891,762 161,437,724 
End of year $ 154,622,118 $ 149,928,478 $ 161,441,785 $ 158,891,762 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Contributions - employer $ 8,180,000 $ 8,918,000 $ 8,452,000 $ 8,165,000 

Net investment income 5,475,062 (2,258,563) 24,898,909 1,666,459 
Benefit payments {6,755,471) (6,268,080) (6,018,504) (6,043,131) 
Administrative expense (7,948) (10,108) (12,847) (13,407) 
Other !36,810) !29,490! !13,821! !13,477) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 6,854,833 351,759 27,305,737 3,761,444 
Plan fiduciary net position 

Beginning of year 119,041,409 118,689,650 91,383,913 87,622,469 
End of year $ 125,896,242 $ 119,041,409 $ 118,689,650 $ 91,383,913 
Net OPEB liability $ 28,725,876 $ 30,887,069 $ 42,752,135 s 67,507,849 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total OPEB liability 81.42 % 79.40% 73.52% 57.51% 
Covered�employee payroll $ 41,993,204 $ 41,719,615 $ 43,914,484 s 41,038,526 
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 68.41% 74.03% 97.35 % 164.50% 

2020 2019 2018 

$ 2,598,017 $ 2,480,098 $ 2,404,087 

10,592,452 10,129,142 9,685,512 

(28,736) (2,312,485) 
1,247,028 2,183,447 

!S,985,550) 1s,8ss,338l is, 724, 1211 
8,423,211 6,624,864 6,364,872 

153,014,513 146,389,649 140,024,777 
$161,437,724 $ 153,014,513 $ 146,389,649 

$ 7,945,000 $ 8,855,338 $ 11,724,727 

3,430,974 5,235,037 6,029,726 
(5,985,550) (5,855,338) (5,724,727) 

(25,068) (15,933) (13,794) 
2,370,283 78,200 
7,735,639 8,219,104 12,094,132 

79,886,830 71,667,726 59,573,594 
$ 87,622,469 $ 79,886,830 $ 71,667,726 
s 73,815,255 $ 73,127,683 $ 74,721,923 

54.28% 52.21% 48.96% 
$ 39,801,114 $ 38,254,167 $ 36,968,407 

185.46% 191.16% 202.12% 

* This schedule is intended to present information for ten years for each respective fiscal year. Additional years will

be built prospectively as information becomes available.

See report of independent auditors and accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of OPEB Contributions 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Contributions 

in Relation to 

Actuarially the Actuarially 

Determined Determined 

Year Ended Contribution Contributions 

June 30, 2024 $ 8,303,000 $ 8,303,000 

June 30, 2023 8,180,000 8,180,000 

June 30, 2022 8,918,000 8,918,000 
June 30, 2021 8,452,000 8,452,000 

June 30, 2020 8,165,000 8,165,000 

June 30, 2019 7,945,000 7,945,000 

June 30, 2018 8,467,000 8,855,338 

June 30, 2017 8,181,000 11,724,727 

June 30, 2016 8,826,000 11,728,539 

June 30, 2015 8,528,000 10,750,399 

Contributions 

as a Percentage 

Contribution Covered- of Covered-

Deficiency Employee Employee 

(Excess) Payroll Payroll 

$ $ 43,819,952 18.9% 
41,993,204 19.5% 
41,719,615 21.4% 
43,914,484 19.2 % 
41,038,526 19.9% 
39,801,114 20.0% 

(388,338) 38,254,167 23.1 % 

(3,543,727) 36,968,407 31.7% 

(2,902,539) 35,467,175 33.1 % 

(2,222,399) 34,329,374 31.3 % 

See report of independent auditors and accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Note to Required Supplementary Information Required by GASB Statement No. 75 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

1. Significant Methods and Assumptions

The actuarially determined annual required contributions ("ARC") for the year ended June 30, 2024 was
developed in the July 1, 2021 valuation. The following summarizes the significant methods and assumptions

used to determine the actuarially determined contribution for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Actuarial valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Equivalent single 

amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Investment rate of return 

Payroll growth 

Salary increases 

Demographic assumptions 

Mortality 

Participation rates 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

July 1, 2021 

Individual Entry Age Normal 

Level percent, closed 

14.0 as of year ending June 30, 2024 

4-year smoothed market

2.50% 

7.00% 

3.50% 

3.50% to 7.00% including inflation 

Based on the experience study covering the five-year period ending 

June 30, 2018 as conducted for the Hawaii Employees' Retirement 

System ("ERS") 

System-specific mortality tables utilizing scale BB to project generational 

mortality improvement 

98% healthcare participation assumption for retirees that receive 100% 

of the Base Monthly Contribution. Healthcare participation rates of 

25%, 65% and 90% for retirees that receive 0%, 50% or 75% of the base 

monthly contribution, respectively. 100% for life insurance and 98% 

for Medicare Part B. 

PPO Initial rate of 7.25%, declining to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after 12 years 

HMO Initial rate of 7.25%, declining to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after 12 years 

Part B Initial rate of 5.00%, declining to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after 9 years 

Dental 4.00% 

Vision 2.50% 

Life insurance 0.00% 

The actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2009, which was used to develop the ARC for fiscal year 2011, included 
a reduction to the discount rate used from the prior valuation. The discount rate changed from a blended 

discount rate of 7% -8% to 7%. This resulted in an overall increase to the actuarially determined OPEB liability 

and the ARC. 

There were no other factors that significantly affected trends in the amounts reported in the schedule of 
changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios or the schedule of OPEB contributions. 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2024 

Water System Revenue Bonds 
Series 2020A (Tax Exempt) 
Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 
Series 2020B Taxable Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 
Rate Dated From 

5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2024 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2025 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2026 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2027 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2028 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2029 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2030 

5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2031 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2032 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2033 
2.500% 3/25/2020 7/1/2034 
4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2035 
4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2036 
4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2037 
2.625 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2038 
4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2039 
2.750% 3/25/2020 7/1/2040 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2041 
3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2042 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2043 
3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2044 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2045 
3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2046 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2047 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2048 
3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2049 

1.720% 3/25/2020 7/1/2024 
1.770 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2025 

1.933% 3/25/2020 7/1/2026 

1.983% 3/25/2020 7/1/2027 

2.027% 3/25/2020 7/1/2028 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2024

(2) $ 1,200,000

(2) 1,265,000

(2) 1,330,000
(2) 1,395,000
(2) 1,470,000

(2) 1,545,000

(2) 1,620,000
7/1/2030 1,705,000
7/1/2030 1,790,000
7/1/2030 1,885,000

(2) 1,955,000
7/1/2030 2,020,000
7/1/2030 2,105,000
7/1/2030 2,190,000

(2) 2,265,000
7/1/2030 2,340,000

(2) 2,420,000
7/1/2030 2,490,000
7/1/2030 2,565,000
7/1/2030 2,645,000
7/1/2030 2,725,000
7/1/2030 2,805,000
7/1/2030 2,895,000
7/1/2030 2,980,000
7/1/2030 3,070,000
7/1/2030 3,165,000

55,840,000

(2) 610,000

(2) 4,535,000

(2) 4,620,000

(2) 4,715,000

(2) 4,815,000

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2024 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2021A (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 

Rate Dated From 

2.077% 3/25/2020 7/1/2029 

2.127 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2030 

2.227% 3/25/2020 7/1/2031 

2.327% 3/25/2020 7/1/2032 

2.377% 3/25/2020 7/1/2033 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2024 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2025 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2026 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2027 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2028 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2029 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2030 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2031 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2032 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2033 

3.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2034 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2035 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2036 

3.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2037 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2038 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2039 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2040 

3.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2041 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2042 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2043 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2044 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2045 

4.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2046 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2047 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2048 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2049 

5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2050 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2024

(2) 4,910,000

(2) 5,015,000

(2) 5,125,000

(2) 5,245,000

(2) 5,370,000

44,960,000

(2) 945,000

(2) 995,000

(2) 1,045,000

(2) 1,100,000

(2) 1,155,000

(2) 1,215,000

(2) 1,275,000

(2) 1,340,000

7/1/2031 1,410,000

7/1/2031 1,480,000

7/1/2031 1,540,000

7/1/2031 1,595,000

7/1/2031 1,660,000

7/1/2031 1,720,000

7/1/2031 1,785,000

7/1/2031 1,855,000

7/1/2031 1,930,000

7/1/2031 2,000,000

7/1/2031 2,070,000

7/1/2031 2,155,000

7/1/2031 2,245,000

7/1/2031 2,335,000

7/1/2031 2,430,000

7/1/2031 2,545,000

7/1/2031 2,675,000

7/1/2031 2,810,000

7/1/2031 2,955,000

48,265,000

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2024 

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially Call Dates Outstanding 

Rate Dated From (1) June 30, 2024

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2021B Taxable Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 0.520% 3/25/2021 7/1/2024 (2) 3,445,000

Insured Serial Bonds 0.950% 3/25/2021 7/1/2025 (2) 990,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.160 % 3/25/2021 7/1/2026 (2) 1,000,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.450% 3/25/2021 7/1/2027 (2) 7,700,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.600% 3/25/2021 7/1/2028 (2) 6,890,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.820 % 3/25/2021 7/1/2029 (2) 7,965,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.970% 3/25/2021 7/1/2030 (2) 8,155,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.070% 3/25/2021 7/1/2031 (2) 3,880,000

40,025,000

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2024 (2) 1,460,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2025 (2) 1,530,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2026 (2) 1,610,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2027 (2) 1,695,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2028 (2) 1,780,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2029 (2) 1,870,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2030 (2) 1,965,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2031 (2) 2,070,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2032 (2) 2,175,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2033 7/1/2032 2,285,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2034 7/1/2032 2,405,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2035 7/1/2032 2,515,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2036 7/1/2032 2,615,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2037 7/1/2032 2,735,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2038 7/1/2032 2,865,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2039 7/1/2032 2,980,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2040 7/1/2032 3,100,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2041 7/1/2032 3,230,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2042 7/1/2032 3,360,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2043 7/1/2032 3,495,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2044 7/1/2032 3,640,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2048 7/1/2032 4,290,000

55,670,000

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable. (continued) 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2024 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A (2047 Term Bond) 

2047 Term Bond 

2047 Term Bond 

2047 Term Bond 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A (2051 Term Bond) 

2051 Term Bond 

2051 Term Bond 

2051 Term Bond 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 20228 Taxable Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 

Rate Dated From 

4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2045 

4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2046 

4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2047 

3.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2049 

3.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2050 

3.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2051 

2.144% 3/23/2022 7/1/2024 

2.174% 3/23/2022 7/1/2025 

2.274% 3/23/2022 7/1/2026 

2.377% 3/23/2022 7/1/2027 

2.477% 3/23/2022 7/1/2028 

2.489 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2029 

2.539 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2030 

2.589 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2031 

2.639% 3/23/2022 7/1/2032 

2.789% 3/23/2022 7/1/2033 

2.939 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2034 

3.039 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2035 

3.139 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2036 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2034 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2035 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2036 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2037 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2038 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2039 

See report of independent auditors. 
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call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2024

7/1/2032 3,790,000 

7/1/2032 3,940,000 

7/1/2032 4,105,000 

11,835,000 

(2) 4,465,000

(2) 4,600,000

(2) 4,745,000

13,810,000

(2) 220,000

(2) 225,000

(2) 6,620,000

(2) 55,000 

(2) 55,000 

(2) 1,955,000

(2) 1,995,000

(2) 2,040,000

(2) 6,510,000

(2) 6,690,000

(2) 8,255,000

(2) 8,415,000

(2) 8,770,000

51,805,000

7/1/2033 565,000 

7/1/2033 590,000 

7/1/2033 620,000 

7/1/2033 655,000 

7/1/2033 690,000 

7/1/2033 725,000 

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2024 

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially Call Dates Outstanding 

Rate Dated From (1) June 30, 2024

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2040 7/1/2033 760,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2041 7/1/2033 800,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2042 7/1/2033 840,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2043 7/1/2033 885,000 

7,130,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 {2048 Term Bond) 

2048 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2044 7/1/2033 930,000 

2048 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2045 7/1/2033 975,000 

2048 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2046 7/1/2033 1,025,000 

2048 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2047 7/1/2033 1,080,000 

2048 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2048 7/1/2033 1,135,000 

5,145,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 {2052 Term Bond} 

2052 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2044 7/1/2033 1,190,000 

2052 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2045 7/1/2033 1,255,000 

2052 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2046 7/1/2033 1,320,000 

2052 Term Bond 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2047 7/1/2033 1,385,000 

5,150,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2024A (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2024 (2) 7,270,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2025 (2) 7,325,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2026 (2) 1,465,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2027 (2) 1,535,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2028 (2) 2,300,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2031 (2) 4,265,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2037 7/1/2034 1,875,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2038 7/1/2034 1,975,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2039 7/1/2034 2,075,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2040 7/1/2034 2,180,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2041 7/1/2034 2,295,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2042 7/1/2034 2,400,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2043 7/1/2034 2,510,000

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2044 7/1/2034 2,625,000

42,095,000

(1) Calf dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncalfable. (continued) 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2024 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2024A (2049 Term Bond) 

2049 Term Bond 

2049 Term Bond 

2049 Term Bond 

2049 Term Bond 

2049 Term Bond 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2024A (2053 Term Bond) 

2053 Term Bond 

2053 Term Bond 

2053 Term Bond 

2053 Term Bond 

Total 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 

Rate Dated From 

5.250% 4/3/2024 7/1/2045 

5.250% 4/3/2024 7/1/2046 

5.250% 4/3/2024 7/1/2047 

5.250% 4/3/2024 7/1/2048 

5.250% 4/3/2024 7/1/2049 

5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2050 

5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2051 

5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2052 

5.000% 4/3/2024 7/1/2053 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2024

7/1/2034 2,750,000 

7/1/2034 2,895,000 

7/1/2034 3,055,000 

7/1/2034 3,220,000 

7/1/2034 3,390,000 

15,310,000 

7/1/2033 3,570,000 

7/1/2033 3,750,000 

7/1/2033 3,945,000 

7/1/2033 4,145,000 

15,410,000 

$ 412,450,000 

(concluded) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Net Revenue Requirement 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Revenues 

Water sales 

Interest income, net 

Other 

Total revenues 

Deductions 

Operating expenses 

Less: Depreciation and amortization 

Less: Allocated depreciation charges 

Total deductions 

Net revenues 

Net revenue requirement 

Greater of 

1) Aggregate debt service

Required deposits

2) Aggregate debt service

Minimum required debt service ratio

Net revenue requirement 

Net revenue to aggregate debt service ratio 

See report of independent auditors. 
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$ 257,491,103 

18,709,948 

2,648,337 

278,849,388 

220,079,201 

(50,342,969) 
(2,509,752) 

167,226,480 

$ 111,622,908 

$ 28,017,410 

$ 28,017,410 

$ 28,017,410 

X 1.20 

$ 33,620,892 

3.98 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Single Audit of Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

Vear Ended June 30, 2024 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control 

Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 

Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Board of Water 

Supply (the "BWS"), a component unit of the City and County of Honolulu, as of and for the year ended 

June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BWS's 

basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the BWS's internal control 

over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal control. Accordingly, we do 

not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 

of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 

of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 

significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 

than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 

or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the BWS's financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 

financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
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objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 

no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 

Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal 

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the BWS's int,ernal control and compliance. Accordingly, 

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Honolulu, Hawaii 

November 15, 2024 

G) 
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To the Board of Directors 

Board of Water Supply 

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance 

for Each Major Program, Internal Control Over 

Compliance, and the Schedule of Expenditures of 

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

City and County of Honolulu 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

(5) 
ACCUITY 

We have audited the Board of Water Supply's (the "BWS") compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 

material effect on each of the BWS's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The BWS's

major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule 

of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the BWS complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 

above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 

June 30, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America ("GAAS"); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Our responsibilities under those standards 

and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the BWS and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 

in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the 

major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the BWS's compliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 

implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 

laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the BWS's

federal programs. 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 

opinion on the BWS's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material 

noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is 

higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements 

referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 

aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about 

the BWS's compliance with the requirements of the major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 

Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test

basis, evidence regarding the BWS's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of the BWS's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal

control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal control over compliance. Accordingly,

no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 

internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 

federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 

or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 

not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 

over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 

a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 

internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 

in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

(fl) 
ACCUITY 



deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 

above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may 

exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 

control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 

Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of BWS as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BWS's basic financial statements. 

We issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2024, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 

financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 

statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 

expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform 

Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 

of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 

used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 

to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material 

respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Honolulu, Hawaii 

November 15, 2024 

G) 
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Federal Program or Pass-through Entity 

U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Pass-through from the City and County of Honolulu 

Assistance 

Listing 

Number 

COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Pass-through from the State of Hawaii, Department of Health 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State 

Revolving Funds 

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Total expenditures of federal awards 

66.468 

Pass-through 

Entity Identifying 

Number 

24823-3030 

ASO LOG #24-090 

Federal 

Expenditures 

$ 9,035,346 

9,035,346 

7,820,250 

7,820,250 

$ 16,855,596 

See report of independent auditors and notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award

activity of the Board of Water Supply (the "BWS") under programs of the federal government for the year

ended June 30, 2024 and is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for

Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the

operations of the BWS, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net

position, or cash flows of the BWS.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures under

the Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds program are reported when incurred and

when reimbursed by federal loan proceeds received from the pass-through entity during the audit period.

Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein

certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The BWS has elected not to use the 10% de mini mis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting 
• Material weakness(es) identified?
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs 
• Material weakness(es) identified?
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 

in accordance with the Uniform Guidance? 

Identification of major programs 
Assistance Listing 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Unmodified 

yes X no 
yes 

yes 

yes 
__ yes 

_
x
_ none reported 

X no 

X no 
_

x
_ none reported 

Unmodified 

yes X no 

Number 

21.027 COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Recovery Fund 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None noted. 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None noted. 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs. 



ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 5 

PETITION 
FOR THE 
DESIGNATION 
OF THE 
WAl'ANAE 
SECTOR AS A 
GROUND WATER 

MANAGEMENT 

AREA 

February 24, 2025 

"February 24, 2025 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Petition for the Designation of the Wai'anae Sector as a 

Ground Water Management Area 

Water Resources will provide a briefing on our petition the State 

Commission on Water Resource Management for the designation of the 

Wai' anae Aquifer Sector as a Ground Water Management Area to 

increase the protection and management as it currently exists for the rest 

of O'ahu's aquifers. Climate change is causing decreasing rainfall trends 
affecting groundwater levels and stream flows in Wai'anae, while growth 

and increasing temperatures will drive up water demand as 

evapotranspiration rates increase. As supply diminishes and demand 

increases, water conservation efficiencies in War a nae will become 
increasingly important. 

More than half of Wai'anae's drinking water is imported from the Pearl 

Harbor aquifer and if climate change and associated resource 

management and regulatory actions require a reduction in sustainable 

yields in the Makaha and Wai'anae aquifers, new Pearl Harbor sources 

will be needed to compensate. Designation will provide more clarity on 

climate change impacts and the resource management and infrastructure 

challenges and decisions needed to mitigate those risks and 

uncertainties. 

During the petition development, BWS and our consultant, Kahalawai 
Consulting, LLC conducted a comprehensive outreach effort to gain 
important feedback and elevate the community awareness of the benefits 

and requirements of designation. The feedback received indicated broad 
support for designation. The petition can be viewed at the below link. 

https://www.boardofwatersupply.com/bws/media/files/BWS-Letter-to­

CWRM-Waianae-Designation-Petition-Submittal-2025-01-07.pdf 

Attachment" 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 
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DISCUSSION: 

February 24, 2025 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Barry Usagawa, Program Administrator, Water Resources Division and 
Jonathan Scheuer, Kahalawai Consulting, LLC, gave the report. 

After Mr. Barry Usagawa's presented slide 11, Chair Anthony inquired if 
any of the eight criteria listed could trigger groundwater designation? 

CWRM CONSIDERS EIGHT CRITERIA THAT CAN 

TRIGGER GROUNDW ATERDESIGNATION 

1. Whether an increase in water use or authorized planned use may cause the maximum 

rate of withdrawal from the ground water source to reach 90% of the sustainable yield 

of the proposed ground water management area; 

2. There is an actual or threatened water quality degradation as determined by 

the Department of Heahh; 

3. Whether regulation is necessary to preserve the diminishing ground water supply for 

future needs, as evidenced by excessively declining ground water levels; 

4. Whether the rates, times, spatial patterns, or depths of existing withdrawals of ground water 
are endangering the stability or optimum development of the ground water body due to 
upconing or encroachment of salt water; 

5. Whether the chloride contents of existing wells are increasing to levels which materially 
reduce the value of their existing uses; 

6. Whether excessive preventable waste of ground water is occurring; 

7. Serious disputes respecting the use of ground water resources are occurring; 

8. Whether water development projects that have received any federal, state, or county 
approval may result, in the opinion of the commission, in one of the above conditions. 

11 , 
Bold =applicable criteria 

Mr. Barry Usagawa responded yes. 

Chair Anthony asked, since outreach efforts to the Navy were 
unsuccessful, what that meant. 

Dr. Jonathan Scheuer explained that he and his team tried various efforts 
to talk and brief the Navy about taking water from the spring behind 
Lualualei without any follow-up. 

Manager Lau offered to put Dr. Scheuer in touch with the head of the 
Navy Region in Hawaii. 

Mr. Usagawa shared that the general response was in support of the 
designation. 

Dr. Scheuer added that when the designation map was shared and 
explained, the community spoke in support of protecting the waters on the 
west side. 

Board Member Wilhelm asked what the next step would be since the 
petition was submitted on January 7, 2025. 
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February 24, 2025 

Mr. Usagawa shared that he and Dr. Scheuer had met with the 
Commission on Water Resource Management (CWRM) last week. The 
CRMW asked for an extension from the Commission to allow formal 
comments from the Mayor, City Council, and the BWS. The CWRM 
would discuss any comments received at their March or April meeting. 

Dr. Scheuer added that after the CWRM meets, Chair Dawn Chang, the 
Chair of the Board of Land and Natural Resources (BLNR), and the 
CWRM will determine whether they believe there are enough facts to 
support and move forward with the designation. He shared that Deputy 
Ciara Kahahane, CWRM, said an analysis would also be done before a 
recommendation is made. If it is recommended to move forward, a public 
hearing will be held for the community to testify, then finally, return to the 
CWRM to vote on whether Wai'anae would become a groundwater 
management area. If the petition for the designation is passed, a notice 
will be posted in the Star Advertiser three times. The third notice is the 
start date for the existing well users to apply for existing water use 
permits. 

Chair Anthony referred to slide six and asked how the BWS tracks and 
balances the sustainable yield as the trend moves downward. 
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Mr. Usagawa asked that slide 15 be shared on the screen. 

Chair Anthony inquired if this forecast is up to the year 2100. 

Mr. Usagawa replied that the climate forecast is for the year up to 2100. 
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February 24, 2025 

Mr. Usagawa explained that in 2008 and 2019, the CRWM updated the 
sustainable yield through the update of the water resources protection 
plan. The sustainable yield is calculated by a "water professions group" 
including hydrologists, geologists, water managers, and interested parties 
who review the methodology used to calculate the sustainable yield. Dr. 
John Mink created the mathematical equation. The recharge numbers 
are historical trends from the United States Geological Survey (USGS). 
Mr. Usagawa shared that when he first started, the sustainable yield for 
Oahu was 495 million gallons per day (mgd), then lowered in the 90s to 
465 mgd when the sugar plantations began to close, and the recharge 
was lost. The sustainable yield continued to lessen to 408 mgd, and 
today down to 393.5 mgd. He stated that the sustainable yield continues 
to decrease due to reduced recharge, which is affected by lower rainfall 
and hotter temperatures, affecting evapotranspiration. Mr. Usagawa 
shared that CWRM is first updating Sustainable Yields for West Maui 
since the area was recently designated, and they are issuing water 
permits there. He commented that once the focus of the water 
professionals group becomes statewide, the BWS would want to be 
included to learn how the resource will be protected, the precautions 
taken, and how they determine a suitable sustainable yield. 

Current SY and Potential Range of SY from Climate 

I■

�� 

-
. .,_ 

_..,n_ 
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Mr. Usagawa asked that slide 14 be shared on screen. He shared that 
these models were done by UH, where Dr. Scheuer facilitated a 
workshop on groundwater modeling. Mr. Usagawa stated that he hoped 
to see these two forecasts converge rather than see two different 
scenario's. 
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UH 2100 rainfall forecasts using 2 downscaled climate models show decreasing rainfall in 

Wai'anae. In the worst-case statistical model, rainfall could decrease an average of 65% in 

importantmauka recharge areas, reducing the amount of water that can be sustainably 

withdrawn from the aquifer. 
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Dr. Scheuer explained that statistical downscaling and dynamic 
downscaling are different in that statistical downscaling looks at historical 
rainfall patterns and projects them into the future. In contrast, dynamical 
downscaling is a global climate model that tries to predict global climate 
and where it would be meaningful to Hawai'i. The areas that have been 
converged are on the leeward sides of the island. Statistical and 
dynamical downscaling indicate an end-of-century change to a drier 
climate in drier regions such as Wai'anae. 

Chair Anthony commented that the comparison from when Mr. Usagawa 
started his journey with the BWS til today is great. The BWS continues its 
messaging about water conservation, whereas Oahu's affordable housing 
crisis calls for an increase in water. However, at the same time, the 
sustainable yield continues to trend down as access to water gets tighter 
and tighter. 

Manager Lau referred back to slide 6. He asked Mr. Usagawa about the 
islands sustainable yield, which is over 38% less island-wide. He 
commented that the sustainable yield for Oahu is currently 393.5 mgd 
and has only seen it go lower over time. 

Mr. Usagawa responded that of the 393.5 mgd, the island-wide 
groundwater use is approximately 200 mgd, and there are areas where its 
sustainable yield is not fully utilized. He explained that if the sustainable 
yield is lowered by just one mgd in areas such as Honolulu, it would affect 
the operations of the BWS. 

Manager Lau inquired if areas such as Wahiawa and up North are where 
the sustainable yield is not being fully utilized. 
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Mr. Usagawa responded that Manager Lau was correct that areas in the 
Central and North are not entirely using its sustainable yield. 

Manager Lau commented that the placement of a new municipal landfill 
needs careful thought as it could affect the water quality for years to 
come. 

Dr. Scheuer shared that the CWRM is actively re-examining the model to 
calculate sustainable yield, which did not consider the groundwater­
dependent ecosystems. Groundwater-dependent ecosystems include 
streamflow, and also coastal wetlands, and fishponds. Therefore, the 
CWRM is working to add that to the sustainable yield model, putting 
pressure on the amount of water available for extraction. 

Chair Anthony commented that each island has its own unique 
challenges and surpluses since each island is geologically different. It is 
really important to implement the lessons learned and understand the 
movement of the water, the effects of rising chlorides, and the right to use 
the water. 

Manager Lau added the importance of conservation and efficient water 
use. Our islands are 100% dependent on groundwater resources for 
drinking water, which eventually will diminish over time as needs are met. 

Chair Anthony inquired about the area in Makaha where it is hard to move 
water to higher urban areas. 

Mr. Usagawa shared that The Harry and Jeanette Weinberg Foundation 
donated vacant urban parcels in the Makaha Valley to MA'O Farms. The 
understanding is that MA'O Farms is working with the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service to recover some of the vegetation, native plants, and 
endangered species in the area. He stated that the BWS supports 
rehabilitating the land. However, the area has other demands, including 
potentially reopening a second golf course. Mr. Usagawa is hesitant 
about whether enough water exists to support a second golf course, 
although a well was already drilled. He explained that the request for a 
designation would require an additional water use permit. The existing 
sources are showing a decline in water levels. 

Chair Anthony asked if MA'O Farms had reached out to the BWS. 

Dr. Scheuer replied that MA'O Farms were briefed early on in the 
development of the petition for designation in the Wai'anae Sector. They 
also shared the information after the petition was filed and a consultation 
with them. Another meeting is scheduled for this week. 

Mr. Usagawa shared that the BWS made an attempt to investigate 
groundwater-dependent ecosystems and the beneficial effect of water 
flowing into the coast. A portion of recharge is not included in the 
sustainable yield that is allowed to flow to the coast. The placement of 
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new wells further away from groundwater-dependent ecosystems is 
important since it can dry up streams and springs. 

Board Member Kehaulani Pu'u inquired about an email from CWRM sent 
to board members requesting comments. 

Manager Lau replied that board members can send comments 
individually or as a group and offered to assist. 

Chair Anthony commented that responding together as a Board is the 
best way to respond to the CWRM email. 

Board Member Pu'u stated that the response deadline is March 7, 2025. 

Dr. Scheuer explained that the water code is written in a way that any 
petition for designation filed by any community group or body requires 
consultation with the Mayor, the BWS, and the City Council of its 
respective county. The email was sent because this is the first time the 
BWS has been the petitioner, and there are no special provisions. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 7 

WATER MAIN 
REPAIR 
REPORT FOR 
JANUARY 2025 

DISCUSSION: 

February 24, 2025 

"February 24, 2025 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Water Main Repair Report for January 2025 

Wayne Tello, Acting Program Administrator, Field Operations Division, 
will report on water main repair work for the month of January 2025. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Wayne Tello, Acting Program Administrator, Field Operations Division, 
gave the report. 

Chair Anthony inquired whether contractors are billed for water, damages, 
and overtime. 

Mr. Wayne Tello responded, yes. 

Chair Anthony inquired if the water wasted can be measured. 

Mr. Tello replied that there is no way of measuring the water wasted from 
a main break. 
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